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STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors present their strategic report of Triley Midco Limited (‘the Company’) together with its subsidiary
companies (‘Clinigen’ or 'the Group’ or ‘Clinigen Group') for the year ended 30 June 2023. The comparative period
ended 30 June 2022, is from the date of incerporation of 18 November 2021, with the activity reflecting the period from
acquisition of the Clinigen Group on 4 April te 30 June 2023, as described below.

Ingorporation and Acquisition

The Company was incorporated on 18th November 2021 as a vehicle established by a fund managed by Triton Partners
to acquire Clinigen Limited and its subsidiaries (the "Clinigen Group”). The Company remained largely dormant until 25th
February when the Company subscribed for shares in a new entity, Tritey Midceo 2 Limited which was set up for the
purpose of halding the external financing facilities in connection with the acquisition. On 30th March, the Company
subscribed for further shares in Triley Midco 2 Limited for total consideration of £911.0m satisfied entirely in cash. This
investment was funded by a corresponding issue of shares in the company to its parent Triley Holdco Limited for equal
consideration and also settled entirely in cash.

On 4th April 2022 the Triley Midco Limited Group (the "Group”) acquired Clinigen Limited (formerly Clinigen Group plc)
by means of a scheme of arrangement for total consideration of £1,257.6m, settled entirely in cash.

Principal activities and business model

Clinigen is dedicated to providing heaithcare professionals (HCPs) and their patients around the world with quicker and
broader access tao critical medicines, and in the process increasing the value of a pharmaceutical product by extending
and expanding its lifecycle.

Clinigen provides a unique set of niche, high value services to pharma and biotech clients at all stages of their products’
lifecycles. This combined offering helps to accelerate drug development plans and enable access to critical medicines at
a country, regicnal, and global level for patients with unmet needs by providing a quality assured, ethical service to
hospital physicians and pharmacists seeking access to these medicines.

On top of the core services offering, Clinigen also owns the rights to a number of medicines which have been acquired
or developed in-house. During the year good progress has been made in simplifying the Group with the divestment of a
number of elements within the Owned Products area of the business.

Business review

Alternative performance measures are defined and reconciled in note 3 of the financial statements. Comparative
information is for a 3-month period, from acquisition of the Clinigen Group by a Triton fund (as described above) to the
30 June 2022 and the movements in income statement are mainly as a result of prior year being for a sharter period.

The Group is seeing good progress from its strategic focus on its service offering to pharmaceutical and biotechnology
clients at all stages of their product lifecycle with the divestment of Proleukin and its Greek based Contract Development
QOrganisation business, Lamda, during the year. Growth from the services business has helped to offset the headwinds
against the owned product portfolio. Total revenue from continuing operations increased to £515.2m (2022 3 months:
£151.4m) and to £424.5m (2022 3 months: £124.3m) on a net revenue basis, while adjusted EBITDA increased to

£84 2m (2022 3 months: £29.0m).

A favourable revenue mix in the year with higher Partnered and Managed Access sales (with higher margins) and lower
clinical sourcing sales was the driver for underlying gross margin increasing to 34.7% (2022 3 months: 31.7%). Gross
profit growth was driven by strong volumes and pricing in Partnered along with Managed Access volumes higher as
programs are larger and continuing for longer. Adjusted EBITDA reflected an investment in overheads in supply chain,
IT, data and digital capabilities to drive lang term growth.

Adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations increased to £16.8m (2022 3 months. £nil) after deducting
amortisation and depreciation charges of £19.8m (2022 3 months: £4.1m) driven primarily from investment in both digital
and physical infrastructure to support growth of the operational platform en which the service offering to customers is
based and finance costs of £47.6m (2022 3 months: £24.9m), reflecting a £140m repayment of the second lien term loan
B in May 2023,

Loss before tax on a statutory reported basis was £53.8m (2022 3 months: loss £53.4m) after taking into account the
significant non underlying amortisation of intangibles assets arising on acquisition and other non-underlying items.
Further detail on the non-underlying costs incurred in the year can be found in note 8 to the financial statements.

Totai profit for the year of £56.1m (2022 3 months: loss £57.0m) reflects a £97 8m profit from discontinued operations
which inctudes a £97.8m gain on sale of Proleukin and Lamda.

The Group maintains a strong balance sheet with net assets of £886.9m (2022: £820.7m) and net debt of £539.3m
(2022: £675.8m). Adjusted operating cash flow of £47.8m (2022 3 months: £48.5m) represented a 57% conversion on
adjusted EBITDA (2022 3 months: 167%).
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Acquisitions and disposals

On 25th November 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Drug Safety Navigator LLC {"DSN"} for
US3$6m (note 27).

On 23rd January 2023, the Group signed an option agreement for the disposal of the warldwide rights to Proleukin to
lovance Biotherapeutics Inc. for up-front cash of £166.9m, a milestone payment of £41.7m upon first approval of
Lifileucel and a perpetual regular contingent consideration payment based as a % of sales. The transaction completed
on 18th May 2023.

On 31st March 2023, the Greup completed the disposal of Lamda Laberateries S.A. (‘Lamda’) to Adragos Pharma
GmbH for cash proceeds of £26 Om, before deducting £0.9m cash in the business, for the entire share capital of Lamda.

Subsequent to the year end the Group divested four owned products to CNX Theraputics Limited as detailed in note 30.
The associated results from this divestment have been classified as held for sale and discontinued within these financial
statements.

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

The Group's primary key performance indicators are net revenue, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted operating cash flow
which are the best measures of the performance of the business in achieving its strategic objectives.

The Group’s net revenue increased to £424 5m (2022 3 months: £124.3m) as a result of the annualisation of the
Group's results from one quarter to a full year.

Adjusted EBITDA increased to £84.2m (2022 3 months: £29.0m) again due to the annualisation of the Group’s results.
Adjusted operating cash flow of £47.8m (2022 3 months: £48.5m) represented a 57% conversion on adjusted EBITDA
(2022 3 months: 167%).

Principal risks and uncertainties

In respect of the year ended 30 June 2023, an assessment of the principal risks facing the Group has been performed,
including those that would threaten the Group's business model, future performance, or liquidity. The key risks, including
landscape and management mitigations are summarised below:

GEOPOLITICAL AND MACROECONOMIC RISK Trend

Failure to identify, monitor and respond to geopolitical and macre-economic changes which coufd have a @

significant financial impact and/or impact on our ability to service our ¢lients and customers.

Risk landscape Mitigations

=  Political and economic volatility with prolonged « Broad and diverse services strategy supported by
economic impacts likely to persist. geographical range and expansion thus limiting the

» Food, energy supply, cost of living crisis exacerbate impact of events in any single territory.
societal vulnerabilities and ultimately workforce +« Ongoing monitoring of developments in key
dynamics. geographies.

+ The Ukraine war is ongoing and likely to continue into +« Maintenance of effective relationships with regulatory
the medium term. hodies to enable the Group to respond rapidly to local

« Increased likelihood of further geopalitical tensions in changes in circumstances or events.

other regions, including the Middle East. ¢  Exposure to currency fluctuation is reduced by using

« Increased market uncertainty delaying the path to bank accounts denominated in the principal fareign
lower inflation and fikelihocd of higher interest rates currencies for payments and receipts.
for longer. » Where there is a sufficient visibility of currency needs,
hedging is in place for foreign exchange to help
mitigate volatility and aid margin management.

¢ Interest rate risk is managed through use of
appropriate hedging of the groups floating interest
rate expense on its debt funding.

+ [Inflation and interest rate impact is monitored closely
across operations and modelled in financial forecasts.

¢ Financial forecasting and stress testing conducted.

= Regular monitoring of the Group’s foreign currency
exposures and impact on cash flows.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

PHARMACEUTICAL AND BIOTECHNOLOGY MARKET TRENDS

Clinigen is dependent upon the ability and willingness of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies to
continue ta spend on research and development and to qutsource the services that we provide. Clinigen is
therefore subject to risks, uncertainties and trends that affect these companies in the industry.

Trend

@

Risk landscape

Mitigations

.

Strong growth in markets Clinigen has chosen to
operate in.

Pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies
strategy to outsource clinical and post marketing
associated services.

Potential for new services and expansion into new
markets to lead to increased regulatory requirements.

Global increase in R&D activity with year-on-year
expansion in clinical studies

Increasing disease complexity/development in new
technologies and more intricate trial design driving
greater need for specialist partners.

Potential for customers to cancel or delay clinical trials
or commercialisation projects.

Increasing competition in pharmaceutical services

Clinigen continues to broaden its customer base to
reduce reliance on any one customer, location or
therapeutic area

Focus on delivering a high standard of work to our
customers and retaining these customers in the long
term.

Focus on building a strong recurring pipeline of
projects

Clinigen operates across the globe with a significant
geographic footprint with expansion across adjacent
services ensuring long term added value partnerships
with customers.

Monitering of business dynamics and client/customer
trends.

BUSINESS RESILIENCE AND DISRUPTION

Failure to implement and manage a resilient delivery model, including appropriate use and management of
third parties, leading to quality issues, delivery disruption and financial and/or reputational implications.

Trend

<

Risk landscape

Mitigations

Increasing reliance on resilience/business continuity
of entities and third parties to ensure services are not
impacting.

Continuing palitical and economic volatility increasing
the risk to supply and disruption of our services,
uttimately impacting the end customer {patient).

Increasing complexity in supply chains and demands
from customers.

The Group seeks to reduce the over-reliance on
critical suppliers through dual sourcing where
possibfe.

Maintenance of appropriate stock levels to minimise
the risk of shortage of supply and ability to respond to
market shortages.

Business Interruption ('Bl’) insurance in place ta
mitigate the financial risk associated with a prolonged
disruption to service(s).

Marine insurance in place to limit the Group's financial
exposure and liability in the event of loss/damage to
client product during transit.

Third party risk management controls seek to
minimise the risk of disruption in the supply chain.

Strict inbound quality control and quarantine
procedures are adopted at all warehouse facilities.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

Failure to comply with relevant legal and regulatory requirements leading to regulatory action, financial
penalties, reputational damage and/or ultimately loss of trading licenses.

Trend

©

Risk landscape

Mitigations

Increasing complexity in the external global legal and
regulatory environment.

Quality and Compiiance requirements fundamental to
global business operations within the pharmaceutical
supply chain.

Client audits continuing to extend focus behind Good
Practice in pharmaceutical operations (GxP)
compliance, including ethics and compliance and
sustainability.

Global Compliance Management System (*“CMS”) in
cperation, setting out clear policies, procedures and
guidance covering non-GxP legal and regulatory
reguirements.

Global Quality Policy and Manual facilitated via
electronic Quality Management System to ensure GxP
compliance.

Regular updating of the Group's processes and
procedures to facilitate compliance by all our
employees, with all applicable regulations;

Mandatory annual training for all employees across a
range of key legal and regulatory requirements,
including Good Manufactuning Practice, Good
Distribution Practice activities, as well ethics and
compliance (i.e. Anti-Bribery and Corruption,
Sanctions, and Data Protection).

Contract management and legal review procedures;

Ongoing proactive dialogue with relevant stakeholders
and competent authorities.

Robust processes and controls to support clean
Competent Authority inspections and client audits.

TECHNGLOGY ENVIRONMENT

Failure to ensure the IT infrastructure and applications across the technology ecosystem support the
running of the business now and in the future. The Group fails to successfully implement scalable
technology and efficient platforms, impeding its ability to deliver on its strategic plans.

Trend

&

Risk landscape

Mitigations

Importance of preparing for the 1T infrastructure of the
future which will affect the ability to serve our clients
and customers.

Complexity of the technology environment is
increasing, and will continue to increase at pace.

Increasing reliance and demands on technology (and
data) from clients and customers.

Ongoing pregrammes designed to respond to internal
and external demands on the Group's IT
infrastructure, including alignment and migration of
multiple ERPs in operation across the business.

IT disaster recovery plans are developed and testing
completed to ensure critical systems/ applications
could be restored in the event of a disruption.

Recovery of critical systems is managed via the IT
Managed Service Provider ("MSP").

Programme of testing provides assurance of our
ability to rebuild systems from backups.

Regular reviews of third parties including risk
assessments for outsourcing and review of IT
suppliers.
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STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

CYBER SECURITY

Failure to adequately protect the technology landscape leading to leakage of personal/confidential data;
and/or reduced defences against ransomware attacks.

Trend

@

Risk landscape

Mitigations

Cybercrime and cyber warfare increasingly
widespread and likely due to the continued volatility in
the external geopolitical environment and
technological developments.

Increased reliance on technology to deliver services
leading to a greater risk of cyber security threats.

Continued need to prepare for the technology
environment of the future affecting the ability to serve
clients needs and demands.

The proliferation of data-collecting devices and data
dependent Al technologies likely to increase cyber
and data security risk exposure.

Dedicated Information Security (InfoSec) team
providing averall strategic direction, framework and
policies for information security.

Cyber security policies and procedures to minimise
this risk, including preventative and detective controls
based on the broad principles of NIST, CIS and
180:27001.

Information Security Management System, covering
policies, processes, leadership and assessment for
client data and other infarmation.

Mandatory security education and awareness training
for all.

Data breach prevention controls and enhanced
controls for high risk groups including Managed
Access clients, patients, and employees.

Vulnerability scanning, threat intelligence and
penetration testing.

Anti-virus software.

Incident response capability including cyber
insurance.

Continual investment in established cyber security
controls.

Security awareness and education programmes.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

PEOPLE

Failure to adapt our people strategies now in anticipation of changes in employee expectations and
business models of the future. This includes:

+ Failure to offer a strong proposition to future talent, restricting our ability to attract and retain the
right talent;
Failure to anticipate and adapt to changing employee demands and expectations as an employer,
Failure to create and maintain a diverse and inclusive workforce and culture;
Failure to develop the skills and leaders required to deliver on our strategic ambitions,;

Trend

Failure to adequately address employee wellbeing and mental health.

Risk landscape

Mitigations

External disruptors make it increasingly difficult to
define trends and anticipate workfarce demands and
expectations of the future.

Evolving skilis needed to deliver services to clients
and customers.

Societal shift away from traditional career paths and
working patterns will continue to been seen i.e. hybrid
working.

Impartance of a diverse workforce and pay equity will

continue to evolve and be a significant focus fer
employees.

Our people strategies are regularly reviewed and
updated to ensure they remain relevant.

A comprehensive job grading and performance
management framework provides our people with a
clear and transparent mechanism for progression, pay
and reward.

Regular reviews of the market to benchmark the
Group’s relative competitive position are completed.

Ongoing and frequent employee engagement through
the use of the 'Peakon’ platform.

Regular monitoring and reporting to the Board.

Clinigen Management Academy to assist with career
development and improve competency.

Talent mapping and succession planning

Employee satisfaction and engagement is monitored
weekly via Peakon to ensure Clinigen remains an
exceptional place to work.

Ongoing mental health and wellbeing training
initiatives.

CLIMATE AND ENVIRONMENT

Failure to appropriately mitigate and respond to the impacts of climate change and degradations to the
environment on our operations, including preparing for its implications and:

« failure to transition our own business to adapt to the impacts of climate change and environmental

degradation;,

» failure to meet our climate and environmental commitments; and
s failure to comply with regulatory disclosure and other regulatory requirements.

Trend

&

Risk landscape

Mitigations

Increasing and evolving client sustainability reporting
requirements requiring us to identify changes, be agile
and adapt at speed.

Increasing complexity of climate and other
sustainability related disclosures.

Increasing scrutiny from a multitude of stakeholders
on transitioning our business to net zero.

Board approved sustainability strategy in place and
proactively monitored throughout the year.

Robust governance structure provides clear oversight
and ownership of the Group's strategy and
management of climate-related risks.

Science-based commitment to reach Net Zero by
2040. Net Zero Roadmap under development.

Cloud-based climate reporting platform in place,
enabling accurate capture and reporting on climate
performance and target setting.

Sustainability engagement programme designed to
drive down carbon emissions {scope 3) and ensure
compliance with the EU Corporate Sustainability
Reporting Directive (CSRD) underway.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (‘ESG)

Clinigen exists to make sure a healthcare professional with a patient in need, anywhere in the world, can always get the
right medicine for their individual patient — quickly, easily and safely whether licensed or unlicensed. Population growth,
an increasingly elderly population, climate change, growing incidences of chronic diseases and rare or orphan
medicines, increasing patient knowledge, and concerns around counterfeit medicines are all driving increasing demand
for quality medicines which are not available at the ‘point of care’. These material issues drive the basis of our
sustainability strategy and continued areas of prioritisation, alongside operating as a responsible and sustainable
business.

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

Following Triton’s acquisition of Clinigen in 2022, the Group has worked hard to refresh its Sustainability Strategy to
ensure that it clearly represents our commitment to building a responsible and sustainable business, through clear goals
that address the issues that matter most to our business, our pecple, and the external environment that we operate
within. This has included realigning accountability for sustainability at an operational level, and revising our pillars to
ensure greater alignment to the Group's care purpose, mission, vision, and values.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group's Sustainability Strategy, including setting its commitments and
targets. The strategy is overseen by the Executive Management Team, with operational responsibility sitting with the VP
Risk, Assurance & Compliance. The Board approved strategy sets out the Group’s long-term commitments and is
based upon an annual materiality assessment. The Group’s four material objectives are:

= Accelerating Access — We improve lives by accelerating access te medicine for patients in every corner of the
globe.

« Decarbonising Healthcare — We take collective action to reduce emissions and minimise our impact on the
environment.

+ Developing Change Makers — We empower the people we work with every day to expand our positive impact.

+ Leading with Integrity — We build trust through coliaboration, inclusion, and transparency, creating a culture
where ethics drive our success.

On an annual basis Clinigen reports the impact of its sustainability strategy within a standalone Sustainability Impact
Report. The reportis made available externally via the corporate website.

WHAT'S NEXT

The last 12 months have been a critical milestone in our sustainability journey, with the Group setting firm commitments
which has seen us accelerate our journey across a number of material issues, most notably climate whereby the Board
approved the commitment to setting validated Science Based Targets (SBTs) by 2025.

Over the next 12 months, the Group will continue to implement and monitor its sustainability action plan, and most
notably will finalise its first Net Zero Roadmap, including near and long term SBTs, Fusrther detail on the Group's
sustainability plans will be made available via the Sustainability Impact Report.

STREAMLINED EERGY AND CARBON REPORTING {'SECR)

Clinigen have continued to capture UK emissions as required by the SECR regulations that came inta force an 1 April
2019. The collection and creation of the SECR report was facilitated externally by TEAM (Energy Auditing Agency
Limited). The SECR report covers Scope 1 direct emissions, which includes company-owned vehicles, Scope 2 indirect
emissions from electricity purchased and Scepe 3 emissions from private vehicles for business use.

The SECR report aligns with the financial year to 30 June 2023. Using the latest figures provided by the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy and the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, TEAM converted
the data into tonnes of Carban Dioxide equivalent ('tonnes of CO-¢e’) and categorised into Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope
3 emissions.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ('ESG")
STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING {'SECR')

Using market-based green tariff conversions

TEAM have identified that for the year to 30 June 2023, Clinigen emitted 82.88 tonnes of COze which equates to 0.14
tonnes of COze per £1 million turnover. This represents a significant reduction in CO2e emitted by the UK business
compared to the prior year, largety driven by the reduction in Scope 2 emissions associated with energy consumption.
As part of Clinigen's energy performance and energy saving, imported electricity in FY23 was sourced from >50%
renewable energy supplies and Clinigen's gas supply was switched to biomethane. Using a market-based method to
estimate emissions allows Clinigen’'s renewable purchasing strategy to be factored in.

CO; tonnes equivalent FY23 Fy222
Scope 1 emissions 6.60 4545
écope 2err||55|0ns o - . V o o 71.36 263.21
Total emissions 82.88 318.35
Intensity ratio (CO; tonnes per £1m of turnover) 0.14 0.52

' Scope 3 includes ali other indirect emissions that occur in a company's value chain. For the purposes of UK SECR reposting, Clinigen's Scope 3
emissions only include business travel and employee commuting ?FY22 emissions relate to 12 months activity for the Climgen group.

RATINGS AND DISCLOSURES

Clinigen works closely with a range of ESG rating agencies in support of being transparent and open regarding our ESG
performance. The Board and external stakeholders utilise the following agency ratings to support assessing and
benchmarking the Group's sustainability performance:

«  MSCI- rated ‘A",
s Sustainanalytics - rated 'Low Risk’; and
» EcoVadis - awarded 'Silver medal’ in 2023.

During the year, Clinigen also completed its third CDP (Carbon Disclosure Project) submission and is awaiting the score
outcome to be published.

GTHER ESG INITIATIVES

During the year Clinigen was reaccredited for 1S0:14001 for the UK and continued to implement a range of targeted
actions aimed at reducing our impact on the climate and environment, including:

Switching several sites to renewable sourced electricity and fuel (gas),

Implementation of Sofar Panelling at the warehouse in Pretoria, South Africa;

Commencing a global waste management provider review;

Completion of bio-diversity and water scarcity risk assessments;

Expansion of data capture in our ¢cloud-based software solution (by Cority} to capture, convert and report on
location-based emissions.

CLIMATE RISK & DPPORTUNITIES

During the reporting period Clinigen made significant improvements to its internal processes and systems to enable the
Group to make its first voluntary disclosure against the Task force on Climate Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD).

In accordance with TCFD, Clinigen has prepared a standalone report that presents our TCFD index and aur climate-
related financial disclosures Qverall, we consider that Clinigen has a low-level of climate change exposure. We further
believe that there are no significant opportunities that Clinigen may be able to benefit from as a consequence of climate
change. The TCFD report will be published on the corporate website.

10
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND SECTION 172(1) STATEMENT

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires each Director of the Company to act in the way he or she considers, in
good faith, would most likely promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. In this way,
Section 172 requires the Directors to have regard, amengst other matters, to the:

e Likely consequences of any decisions in the long term
Interests of the Company's employees
Need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and other material stakeholders
Impact of the Company's operations on local communities and the environment
Desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct
Need to act fairly between members of the Company

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Directors have cormplied with the requirements of Section 172 in promoting the
leng-term success of the Group for the benefit of all stakeholders. The Directors acknowledge that some decisions will
not necessarily result in a positive outcome for all stakeholders, however, by considering the Company's purpose,
mission, vision, values and commitment to responsible business together with its strategic priorities and having a
process in place for decision-making, the Directors ensure that their decisions are in the best interests of the business.

The following disclosure describes how the Directors have had regard to the matters set outin Section 172(1)(a) to (f)
and forms the Directors’ statement required under Section 414CZA of the Companies Act 2006.

Key stakeholders

The Directors consider patients, pharmaceutical and biotech clients, HCP customers, employees, competent authorities
and investors to be the Group's key stakeholders and the following activities have been undertaken during the period 1o
engage with these stakeholders.

Patignts

Patients are central to the service that Clinigen provides to its pharmaceutical and biotech clients and HCPs. ltis
ultimately patients' needs and requirements that help to shape the type of services that the Group provides. Through its
various business lines, Clinigen makes new or different treatment options available for patients with unmet needs around
the world. This makes all the difference for patients, whether it be enabling access to a life-saving treatment, or
introducing an option that could have a vast impact on a patient's quality of life.

We engage with the patient community through our global patient advocacy function within medical affairs. Across the
Group, our aims have been to create a feedback loop with the community whereby actual patient needs can be heard,
and have an impact upon Clinigen's business and priorities.

Pharmacegtical § Bintech Chients

Clinigen provide solutions to pharmaceutical and biotech companies at all stages of the medicine lifecycle. It is only
through strong relationships with pharma companies that Clinigen can expedite and broaden access to medicines

for patients around the world, Clinigen’s platform provides pharmaceutical and biotech companies with ethical,
compliant and efficient solutions to medicine access challenges throughout the medicine lifecycle. These solutions drive
value and simplify partnering strategies.

Clinigen engage pharmaceutical and biotech companies at multiple points throughout a medicine's lifecycle — from
phase Il to commercial. The solutions Clinigen provide vary depending on the company’s internal capabiiities and
specific access needs. Over the last 12 months Clinigen has provided solutions to more than 500 pharma and biotech
companies. These companies range from large Top 20 pharma companies te small niche biotechs.

HCP Customers

Along with pharmaceutical and biotech companies, HCPs are the other main user of the service Clinigen provides.
Effectively servicing the needs of HCPs acress the world is critical to being able to achieve our mission. Clinigen
provides a platform that enables HCPs to access critical medicines in a simple, efficient and compliant manner. This
saves time, minimises resource impact and enables HCPs to treat their patients as quickly as possible.

Clinigen’'s multi-channel platform, Clinigen Direct, enables the Group to engage with HCPs via phone, email and online,
Clinigen alse have field-based teams such as Medical Science Liaison that consult directly with treating physicians.

11
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND SECTION 172(1) STATEMENT (continued)

Employees

The Group's employees are vital to help us deliver on our strategic objectives and so it is critical to recruit, develop and
retain the right people. It is only by having a happy, thriving and high performing team that we can continue to serve the
needs of our patients and customers. Many of our employees are attracted to Clinigen due to the nature of the work
enabling better access to medicines. In addition, Clinigen offers a diverse working culture that will offer opportunities for
career development and personal growth.

We encourage a culture of open communication through a range of two-way mediums including regular employee
staff forums; global intranet platform; newsletters; and regular Group and divisional performance updates from
the Executive team. In addition, we utilise Peakon, the world's leading platform for measuring and improving
employee engagement.

Age, Colour, race, gender, disability, ethnic origin, national origin, marital status, sexual crientation, religious or political
views must not be seen as barriers to employment and we are proud of the Group's diverse employment base.

The Group is committed to providing equal oppertunities for individuals in all aspects of employment and considers the
skills and aptitudes of disabled persons in recruitment, career development, training and promotion. The Group supports
employees with disabilities, ensuring the necessary reasonable adjustments are in place to support them.

Competent authorities

Clinigen engages with Competent Authorities including regufators and government departments in order to operate
within the appropriate regulatery and legat framework and expedite access to medicines. QOur quality and regulatory
functions engage with competent authoerities for marketing authorisations, importing and exporting of unlicensed
medicines, strategic guidance and periodic inspections. The competent authorities ensure that every element of the
service Clinigen provides is compliant and, most importantly, protects the patients we provide access for. Farming strong
and transparent relationships with Competent Authorities is key to service the needs of our pharmaceutical clients and
HCP customers.

lnvestars

We regularly communicate with our shareholders primarily through Board meetings held by cur parent company Triley
Holdco Limited which the Group's executive management team agree strategy, report on performance and agree
actions. We communicate with our debt investors on a quarterly basis by providing financial updates and key
developments in accordance with our loan agreements. We also provide an annual update to our debt investors through
conference calls and provide oppertunities for face to face meetings with the management team.

On behalf of the Board

RJ Paling,
Director
21 February 2024
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their report together with the Strategic Repoert and audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023. Triley Midco Limited is a private company limited by shares,
incorporated and domiciled in the UK and registered in England and Wales.

Going concern

The Group's strategy and forecasts, taking account of sensitivities within the trading projections and possible changes in
trading performance, show that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. At 3G June 2023, the Group had £98.5m of cash balances along with a further £75m of undrawn
borrowing facility availabie, which combined with the Group’s positive cash generation from each of its operations,
provides sufficient funding for the near-term settlement of liabilities along with sufficient liquidity for ongoing trading.

The disposals made during the year (note 28) provided, and will continue to provide, a considerable cash inflow for the
Group, further mitigating any going concern risk.

After making appropriate enguires, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in operaticnal existence for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements. Therefore, the Company and Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its
financial statements. Further information on the Group’s borrowing facilities is given in note 19.

Strategic Report

As permitted by legislation, some of the matters required to be included in the Directors' Report have instead been
included in the Strategic Report on pages 3 to 12, as the Board considers them to be of strategic importance.
Specifically, these are the business review and future developments on page 3, risk management on pages 4 t¢ 8,
environmental, social and corporate governance on pages 9 to 10, SECR reporting on page 10 and the statement on
stakeholder engagement on page 12.

Financial instruments

The Group's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign exchange
risk. The Group has a risk management program that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of
the Group by monitoring levels of debt finance and related finance costs and managing foreign currency transactions.
The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks before a sale is made. The Group reduces
its exposure to currency fluctuations on translation by managing currencies using bank accounts denominated in foreign
currencies. Where there is sufficient visibility of currency requirements, forward contracts are used to hedge its exposure
to foreign currency fluctuations. Further detail is provided in note 20 of the consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements
were:

RJ Paling (Appointed 3 January 2023}

DJ Bryant (Appointed 3 January 2023, resigned 26 January 2024)

CT Cheung (Resigned 3 January 2023)

MC Turner (Resigned 3 January 2023)

Directors’ indemnity insurance

During the year and up to the date of signing of this repont, the Company. through the Group. maintained liability
insurance and third party indemnification provisions (which are a qualifying third party indemnity provision for the
purposes of the Companies Act 2008) for its directors.

Political donations

No political donations were made in the year (2022: £nil).

Research & development

The Group carries out product development activities as part of its strategy to ficense and commercialise
pharmaceuticals. The nature of this development is limited and focused cn low-risk generics, in-licensing cpportunities
for existing drugs into new terrtories and development of new indications for its existing owned product portfolio.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Independent auditors

Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the independent auditors will be deemed to be re-appointed and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will therefore continue in office.

Dividends

The Directars do not propeose a dividend for the current financial year {2022: £nil}.

Disclosure of information to the independent auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the Group's independent auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all
the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Group's independent auditors are aware of that information.

Post balance sheet events

Details of events occurring after the end of the reporting period are contained in note 30 of the Group financial statements.

On behalf of the board

RJ Paling
Director
21 February 2024
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE STRATEGIC REPORT, THE
DIRECTORS' REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Consolidated Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable
law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, the directors
have prepared the group financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards and
the company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework™ and applicable law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In
preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed for the group
financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been followed for
the company financial statements. subject to any materia! departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

» prepare the financial statements an the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group
and company wili continue in businass.

The directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are also respensible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the

group's and company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Triley Midco Limited

Report on the audit of the tinancial statements

Opinion
In our opinion:

* Triley Midco Limited’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements’} give a true
and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 30 June 2023 and of the group’s profit and the
group’s cash flows for the year then ended;

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopied international accounting
standards as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006;

» the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and
applicable law); and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Consolidated Annual Report and Accounts (the “Annual Report”),
which comprise: the consoclidated statement of financial position and the company balance sheet as at 30 June 2023; the
consoclidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consclidated statement of cash flows,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the company statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs {UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for
a pericd of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern hasis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and
the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to geing concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
this report, any form of assurance thereon.
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fn connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent matenal inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors’ report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2008 requires us also to report certain opinions and
matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ report,

In our gpinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and Directors’
repart, for the year ended 30 June 2023 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accardance with
applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ report,

Respansibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained mare fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the strategic report, the directors' report and
the financial statements, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal
centrol as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to fiquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high levet of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above. to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities. inciuding fraud. The extent to which
our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud. is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulaticns related to Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency, and we considered the extent to which non-
compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a
direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006 and UK tax regulations. We evaluated management's
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements {including the risk of overrde of controls), and
determined that the principal risks were related to fraudulent journal entries (for example journal entries to increase revenue or
profit) and bias in relation to judgements and estimates, particularly in the areas of goodwill and intangible assets impairment
assessment. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included

* Understanding and evaluating the key elements of the group’s internal control related to estimates:

* Validating the support behind the assumptions and judgements made by management including challenging against possible
alternatives, for example in relation to goodwill and intangibte asset impairment assessment;
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« Identifying and substantively testing higher risk journal entries, in particular any that increased profit, that had unusual account
combinations;

» Discussions with and corroborating key assertions made by finance management, including views on accounting judgements
and estimates, and considering known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and reguiation and fraud;

e Reading the minutes of the Board meetings te identify any inconsistencies with other information provided by management;
and

+ Reviewing legal expense accounts to identify significant legal spend which may be indicative of serious breaches of laws and
regulations.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements.
Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at
www.frc.arg.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for nc other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any cther person tc whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repart to you if, in our opinion:

s we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

s certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

s the campany financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Hfy—

Paul Norbury BSc FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor}
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
East Midiands

21 February 2024
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT for the year to 30 June 2023

2023 2022* (Re-presented) (Note 28)
Non- Non-
underlying underlying
{In £m) Note Underlying (note 8} Total Underlying (note 8) Total
Revenue 4 515.2 - 5158.2 151.4 - 151.4
Cosf ufsa‘félsu - - - | .(336.5) 7 {6.9) (343.4} o 6703.74) (1?9} €121 3)
Gross profit 178.7 (6.9) 171.8 48.0 (17.9) 30.1
Administrative ;Q'Eélnées (114.3) (56.5) (170.8) 23.1) (27.0) (50.1)
Profit f (loss) from operations 64.4 (63.4) 1.0 249 (44.9) (20.0)
Fnance costs 0 @we 72 (san (@49 G5 (@334
Profit / {loss) before income tax 16.8 (70.6) {53.8) - (53.4) (53.4)
|ncorné 15% (expense).’ c-re-d-‘n - o - 1-6 _ (2.5) 14.6 121 (2.8) 85 57
:;‘;fri; t"ig::s) from continuing 14.3 {56.0) (41.7) 2.8 (44.9) 47.7)
Profit f kioss) frorﬁ.d}scorr\trimr:éa operatio.n"s - 28 27.5 70.3 97.8 0.4 9.7) 9.3)
Profit / (Iosé) -a-tt.ributable to ow;ners of 41.8 14.3 56.1 (2.4) (54.6) (57.0)

the Company

*2022 is 3 months of results, from the date that the Clinigen Group was acquired by a subsidiary of the Company.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOMEfor the year to 30 June 2023

2023 2022 (Re-presented) (Note 28)
Non- Non-
underlying underlying
(In £m) Underlying  (note 8) TotalUnderlying  (note 8) Total
Profit / (loss) attributable to owners of the Company 41.8 14.3 56.1 (2.4} {54.6) (57.0)
Other com-prehensive (expensei f income
Itemslghé; nl'lay he.subsequt;;;tig recla\-ssifie-d to prc;t;i; or loss
Cash ﬁow hecll;c;;s - o 7 0.3 - 0.3 (0.1 - 0.1)
Currency tréﬁ;i;.tior;-diﬁerences - (45.4) - (45.4) 38.5 - 385
Net in;restméﬁt hedge 7 {0.3) - (0.3) 2.1y - 21
Income iéx rélating lo net invest;ém hedge 0.1 - 01 0.4 - 0.4
Incomle tax recoénised directly in ;Jther comprehensive income 1.0 - 1.0 - - -
Foreigﬁ ‘éxchan_ge translatio‘rlwl‘diﬁérené;as reclassified iélincome (15.6) i (15.6) ) ) )
statement on disposal of businesses
Total other comprehensive (expense) / income (59.9) - {59.9) 36.7 - 36.7
Ivovt:;::somg:azhgr;:\::'(;xpense) !/ income attributable to (18.1) 14.3 {3.8) 343 {54.6) (20.3)
Total comprehensive (expense) / income arising from:
Continuing operétions {(30.0) (56.0) (86.0) 9.9 {44.9) {35.0)
DiSCDn.tinued m-ner-alions 11.9 70.3 82.2 24.4 (9.7) 147
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 5 at 30 funs 2023

(In £m) Note

2023 2022

Intangible assets 11
Property, plant and equipment 12

Right-of-use assets 13

Contingent consideration receivable 28

Derivative financial instruments 20

Deferred tax assets 21

1,205.2 16853
201 207
206 209
1628 12
s -

0.1 15

Total non-current assets

1,423.6 1.7296

Corporation tax assets

Trade and other receivables 15

5.5

Inventories 14 66.5 80.5

119.0 1334

42.9

Contingent consideraticn receivable 28 .

24.6

Held for sale assets 29 .

Cash and cash equivalents 16

98.5 110.5

Total current assets

357.0 324 4

Total assets

1,780.6 20540

Trade and other payables 17

Borrowings and lease liabilities 19

Deferred tax liabilities 21

- 0.8
636.3 769.4
128.5 209.9

Total non-current liabilities

764.8 9801

Trade and cther payables 17

114.6 164.6

6.6 -

Provisions 18 .

Corporation tax liabilities

Borrowings and lease liabilities 19 .

Derivative financia! instruments 20

3.0 1.5
4.5 16.9

0.2 0.2

Total current liabilities

128.9 183.2

Total liabilities

893.7 11833

Net assets

886.9 890.7

Equity attributable to owners of the Company:

Share capital 22
Share premium account 23
Hedging reserve 23

Foreign exchange reserve 23

Accumulated losses 23

91.1 91.1
8198 8199
e
(2a4) 368

01 (57.0)

Total equity

886.9 8907

The notes on pages 24 to 61 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

The financial statements on pages 19 to 61 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directars on 21

February 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

J PALING,
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT GF CASH FLOW Srar the year to 30 Juns 2023

{In £m) Note

2022 (Re-
presented)
2023 (Note 28)

Operating activities
Loss for the period before tax

Net finance costs 9

(53.8)  (53.4)

54.8 334

Profit / {loss) from operations

Adustmentsfor

A%Aniééiion a.r.16 in'r1pa||";‘1;em of intan.g;}.ble fixed a;sels
De-p%e-ci-ation of pro-perty‘ p'uaﬁi and equ;-pment
Prd%illé-rn-sale c;.%li.ntangible a;;ets o

Increase in fair value of contingent consideration receivable 8

1.0 (20.0)
58.0 78
8.0 2.1
- 0.3)

(0.5) (0.7)

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
becreaée in mventéries V V

bec-re-a;; in tra-de-and oﬂ-1er r-eceivat.)l-e-s

kDec;r-ta-a-séj / inc-r;ease‘i;"tr-aae and (");h-er payal;i.es

Increase in provisions

66.5 (111)
0a  a1s
08 71
@y 40

1.1 -

Cash generated from operations

3.2 318

Income taxes paid

Interest paid

(11.1) (3.0)

(59.6) (12.6)

Net cash flows (used in) / generated from operating activities — continuing operations

Net cash flows from operating activities — discontinued operations 28

(37.5) 16.2

25.1 4.5

Net cash flows (used in) ! generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of intangible fixed assets 11
Purchase of property. plant and equipment 12

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets

Purchase of subsidiaries. net of cash acquired 27

(12.4) 207
{16.6) (4.1
(5.0) (0.9

. o3

(5.2) (1.165.3)

Net cash flows generated from / (used in) investing activities — continuing operations

Net cash flows generated from / (used) in investing activities — discontinued operations 28

{26.8) (1.170.0)

191.0 (0.6)

Net cash flows generated from / (used in} investing activities

21
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWStor the yar to 30 June 2023 (continued)

Financing activities

22

Issue of shares - | 9110
Pléo‘ceraercrisrfroﬁ'\ incrréésér m bcrnrrko;lvings 19"“ - - 728-,-8-
(Repayment of)/ proceeds from related party loans 19 (53 119
Loanrepayments - 19 (1428 @913
Principal element of lease paymens 9 @8 (0
Net cash flows {used in} / generated from financing activities — continuing operations {161.6) 12594
Net cash flows used in financing activities — discontinued operations 28 (0.1) -
Net cash flows (used in} / generated from financing activities (161.7) 12594
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (9.9) iC9.5
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July / incorporation (18 November 2021) 16 110.5 -
Foreign exchange (oss)/ gain - o @n 10
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 16 98.5 110.5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY tor the year to 30 June 2023

Share Share Foreign

capital premium Hedging exchange Accumulated Totat
o £} (Note 22) account reserve reserve losses equity
At 1 July 2022 11  819.9 (0.1} 36.8 (57.0) 890.7
Cl-Jr-rency tr-ar;a-sla-t-son differeﬁce;s - - - (;5.4) ) - . {45.4)
N(‘e"tminvestmen-t-hedge. net o-f-tax - - - - - (02) o B (02)
Income tax recogrnised directly in other comprehensive income o 1.6
Foreign exchange lranslation differences reclassified to income " e
statement on disposal of businesses ° ° " (15.6) ) (15.8)
Caéh flow hedges 7
- VErffective p.c.)r.t.ic.)rn of fair valué Imovements - ) -‘ . 0.4 » - - 04
—.1'.|;ansfers to 1r;e:|‘ncome statement {revenue} - 7 -- h ko.i) / - -7 (01)
Total comprehensive income / (expense) - - 0.3 (61.2) 571 (3.8)
At 30 June 2023 1.1 819.9 0.2 (24.4) 0.1 886.9

Share Share Foreign

capital premium Hedging exchange Accumulated Total
(In £m) (Note 22) account reserve reserve losses equity
Loss for the period - - — — (57.0) (57.0)
‘Curre-n;:y-translz“a;ion diﬁérenca;s.'. - - - 5 _' ' m38”5
Net investment hedge. net of fax - - - -y
Cash ﬂ‘C‘).v;l‘hedéeSV - 7
_ Effective porion of fair value movemens ) - oy
;frénsfers t§ thé ;ncomé st;tément (reveﬁue) - - N 0.2 - - 02
Total comprehensive income / (expense) - - (0.1) 36.8 (57.0) (20.3)
ssue of shares o11 8199 - - - ermo
Total transactions with owners of the Company, recognised
directly in equity 911 819.9 - - - .o
At 30 June 2022 911 819.% (0.1) 36.8 (57.0y 890.7

23



Triley Midco Limited
Annual Report and Accounts 2023

NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS forthe year to 30 une 2023
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group and applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. The policies have been consistently applied to the period presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the histarical cost convention, modified to include
revaluation to fair value of certain financial instruments, in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under those
standards.

The preparation of these financial statements reguires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
Group management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
invalving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 2.

The accounting policies set cut below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistentty throughout the periods
presented in these financial statements. These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the
Group’s presentation currency and all financial information has been rounded to the nearest £0.1m.

The comparative period ended 30 June 2022, is from the date of incorporation of 18 November 2021, with the activity
reflecting the period from acquisition of the Clinigen Group on 4 April to 30 June 2023, as described below. The
comparative period has been restated for the activities which have been discontinued.

Going concen

The Group's strategy and forecasts, taking account of sensitivities within the trading projections and possible changes in
trading performance, show that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. At 30 June 2023, the Group had £98.5m of cash balances along with a further £75m of undrawn
borrowing facility available, which combined with the Group's positive cash generation from each of its operations,
provides sufficient funding for the near-term settiement of deferred consideration liabilities along with sufficient liquidity
for ongoing trading even after taking into consideration potential severe but plausible risk factors.

The post balance sheet dispasals {note 30) will provide a considerable cash inflow for the Group, further mitigating any
going concern risk.

After making appropriate enquires, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements. Therefore, the Company and Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its
financial statements. Further information on the Group's borrowing facilities is given in note 19.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries as if they formed a single
entity. Subsidiaries are those entities where the Company has the ability to control the activities of and decisions made
by that entity and to receive economic benefits that can be affected by that control.

The results of subsidiaries acquired during the period are included in the Group results from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. Accounting policies of subsidiaries are changed when necessary to ensure consistency with
the accounting pelicies adopted by the Group. There are no significant restrictions on the Group's ability to access or
use assets and settle liabilities of the Group.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method.
Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinatians

The Group uses the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is equal to the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

24



Triley Midco Limited
Annual Report and Accounts 2023

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations {continuad)

Acquisition costs for business combinations and post-acquisition restructuring costs are recognised as non-underlying
costs in the income statement as adjusting items as they do not relate to normal trading activities and to reflect their one-
off nature.

Foreign currensy

(a) Functional and ressatation currengy

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the 'functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in sterling. being the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Parent Company operates.
This is the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and halances

Transactions entered into by Group entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (their ‘functional currency’} are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Share capital denominated translated to the Group's presentation
currency is held at historical rate. All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement within
administrative expenses.

(e} fraup eampanes

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency. Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing exchange rate on the date of that statement. Income and expenses for each
income statement and statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions). All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences recognised in the fareign exchange resarve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal would be transferred to the income statement as part of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Non-underlying itams

Non-underlying items are material items of income or expense which the Directors consider are not related to the normal
trading activities of the Group and are therefare separately disclosed as non-GAAP measures to enable full
understanding of the Group's financial perfermance. These include one-off items relating to acquisitions e.g. acquisition
costs and the costs of restructuring post-acquisition; amertisation of intangible assets arising on acquisition and acquired
praducts, mavements of deferred or contingent consideratian; and the release of the fair value adjustment made to
inventory acquired through a business combination. The associated tax impact of these items is also reported as non-
underlying.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a companent of the Group's business that represents a separate geographic area of
operation of a separate major ling of business. Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or earlier
if the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale. Discontinued operations are presented in the Group
income statement as a separate line and are shaown net of tax.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, comparatives in the Group income statement and the
Group statement of comprehensive income are re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of
the comparator year.

Held for sale assets

Assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amounts are to be recovered or setfled principally through a
sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of the carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. No depreciation or amortisation is charged in respect of non-current assets classified as held for
sale.
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Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the Group's interest in the fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities including those intangible assets identified under IFRS 3 ‘Business
Combinations’.

Goodwill is capitalised as an intangible asset with any impairment in carrying value being charged to the income
statement. Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid. the excess is credited in full to the income statement on the acquisition date as a non-underlying
itern.

Goodwill is nat amortised, but is assessed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes indicate a
potential impairment. Goodwill arising on business combinations is atlocated to the associated group of cash-generating
units ('CGUs') based on the particular segment that it relates to. This is then assessed against the discounted cash flows
of the group of CGUs for impairment.

Intangible assets (continued)
Brand

Brands are recognised where applicable on business combinations and are initialty recognised at the fair value of the
asset at the acquisition date. The carrying value of the brand is calculated as cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the fair value cost of the asset over its estimated
useful life. The estimated useful lives range between 15 and 20 years. The amortisation expense is recognised within
non-underlying administrative expenses in the income statement.

Contracts

Contracts acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value on the acquisition date. The contracts
recognised as intangible assets relate to those with key suppliers which were identified as important to the trade of the
acquired business.

The contracts have a finite life and are amortised over the contractual term. Amortisation is scheduled to faltow the
expacted enonomic benefits, recognising the fair value cost of acquiring these contracts against the revenues generated
from them. The amortisation expense is recognised within non-underlying administrative expenses in the iIncome
statement on a straight line basis.

Customer relatwoaships

The customer refationships within acquired operating businesses can be separately identified. The customer
relationships have been initially recognised following a business combination at the fair value of the asset at the
acquisition date.

Amortisation is scheduled to follow the expected economic benefits of each asset over ther estimated useful lives. The
amortisation expense is recognised within non-underlying administrative expenses in the income statement.

Trademarks and licences
Separately acquired trademarks and licences are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the purchase price of
the asset and any directly attributable cost of acquiring the asset and preparing it for its intended use.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible
and the Group intends, has the technical ability and has sufficient resources to complete development, future economic
benefits are probable and if the Group can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development. Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved
products or processes. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads and capitalised borrowing casts. Other development expenditure is recegnised in the
consolidated income statement as an expense as incurred. Internally developed trademarks and licences are held as
assets under construction during development and amortisation commences when the development is complete and the
asset is avaitable for use.

The carrying value of trademarks and licences is calculated as cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
fosses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the trademarks and licences over
their estimated useful lives of between 5 and 25 years. The amortisation expense is recognised within underlying
administrative expenses in the income statement, apart from where the trademarks or licences are acquired as part of a
business combination or product acquisition which is recognised within non-underlying administrative expenses.
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intangible assets (continued)

Computer software

Computer software is capitalised and recognised at cost, being the purchase price of the asset and any directly
attributable costs of developing the asset for its intended use including internal staff costs for time spent specifically on
development activities. The carrying value of computer software is calculated as cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation begins when the computer software comes into use and is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost over its estimated useful life of three to seven years. The amortisation expense is
recognised within underlying administrative expenses in the income statement

Impairment reviews

Goodwill is assessed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes indicate a potential impaiment
Other intangibles are reviewed for impairment if a trigger is identified. The carrying value of individual intangible and
tangible assets is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value-in-use and the fair value less costs
to sell. An impairment foss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying value exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the impairment test is carrigd out on
the smallest group of assets to which it belongs for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (the CGUs).

Goodwill is allocated on initial recognition to each of the Group’s CGUs or groups of CGU's that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination giving rise to the goodwill.

Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possibie reversal of the
impairment at each reparting date.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impairment loss. Cost comprises the purchase price and directly attributable amounts to bring the asset into operation.

Depreciation is provided on all items of property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost of each
asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful economic life, as follows:

Land and buildings — 25 years

Leasehold improvements — remaining term of lease to which the improvements relate
Plant and machinery — 20% per annum

Fixtures, fittings and equipment - 20% to 33% per annum

Leases

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments less any lease incentive receivable;

— variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

— amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual vaiue guarantees,

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option: and

— payments of penalties for termination of the lease. if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option,

Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the iease. If that rate cannot be determined, the
Group's incrementai borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

— the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability or a revaluation of the liability:

— any lease payments made at or befare the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
— any initial direct costs; and

— restoration costs.

Each right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of its useful eccnomic life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis unless the lease is expected to transfer ownership of the underlying asset to the Group, in which case the asset is
depreciated to the end of the useful life of the asset.

Payments associated with the short-term leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in the income
statement. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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Investments

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost and subsequently stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The first
in, first out or an average method of valuation is used. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. In the case of manufactured
inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less applicable variable selling expenses. Provisions are made for slow
moving and damaged inventories. Inventories which have expired are fully provided for until they are destroyed, when
they are written off.

A number of arrangements exist where the Group holds inventories on consignment. Under these arrangements such
inventories are only recognised in the statement of financial position when the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the Group.

Derivative finanial instruments and hedging achivities

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate its exposure to foreign currency exchange risk on cash flow
transactions. Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at their fair value and remeasured at fair value at
each period end. Where appropriate the Group designates hedge relationships for hedge accounting under IFRS &
‘Financial Instruments’.

Where hedge accounting has been applied, changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments designated as
cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent that the hedge is effective. To the extent
that the hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value are recognised immediately in the income statement. If the hedging
instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss previously recagnised in other comprehensive
income remains there until the forecast transaction occurs. When the hedged item is a non-financial asset, the amount
recognised in other comprehensive income is transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when it is recognised. In
other cases, the amount recognised in other comprehensive income is transferred to the income statement in the same
period that the hedged item affects profit or loss. The designation 1s re-evaluated at each reporting date.

The gain or loss on remeasurement te fair value of derivatives that have not been designated for hedge accounting is
recoghised immediately in the income statement. Foreign forward exchange derivative gains and losses are recognised
net.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted far similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the
hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge as well as any associated income tax expense or credit
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign exchange reserve.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is uncenditional, unless they
contain significant financing components, where they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds trade receivables
with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subseguently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables. The expected loss rates are based on payment profiles and historic credit
losses. The historic loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information on macro-economic factors
to the extent they are relevant to the customers' ability to settle. For trade receivables, which are reported net, such
provisions are recorded in a separate allowance account with the movement in the provision being recognised within
administrative expenses in the income statement. The gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the
associated provision when the Group's right to the cash flows expires.

{ash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other highly-liquid cash
investments.
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Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs, including facility fees incurred. Such interest-
bearing liakilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, which ensures
that any interest expense over the period to repayment is at a constant rate on the balance of the liability carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Facility fees paid on the establishment of facilities and for the maintenance
of the facility are capitalised against the loans and borrowings balance. These are amortised as the loan is repaid with
the associated amortisation expense recognised in finance costs.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for gocds and services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. They are classified as current liabifities if payment is due within ene year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Deferred and contingent consideration

Deferred consideration payable/receivable in cash in respect of the acquisition/disposals of intangible assets is
recognised initially at its fair value at the date of acquisition/dispasal. The difference between the fair value of the
deferred consideration and the amounts payable/receivable in the future is recognised as a finance cost/income over the
deferment period.

Contingent consideration on business combinations is initially measured at fair value and is payable/receivable in cash.
The fair value of the contingent liability/asset is remeasured at each period end and the change in fair value is
recognised in the income statement as a non-underlying item

The contingent consideration liability/asset is classified as a current liability/asset if payment/receipt is due within one
year or less. If not, it is presented as a non-current liability/asset

Retirement benefits, defined contribution schemes

Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the income statement in the year to which they
relate. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, it is more likely than not that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
the obligation can be estimated reliably. Provisions are discounted if the impact is deemed to be material.

Dividents

Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders,
this is when paid. In the case of final dividends, this is when approved by the shareholders.

Current and deferred {axes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in ather comprehensive income ar directly in equity, respactively.

The current tax charge, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, ts calculated on the basis of the laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Provisions are established, where appropriate, on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised where the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position differs from its tax base, except for differences arising on:

» the intal recognition of goodwill;

+ the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and

» investments in subsidiaries and associates where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
difference and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognrised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the differences can be utilised.

The amount of the asset or liability is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax liabilities or assets are settled or recovered.
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Gurrent and deferred taxes (continoed)

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on either:

the same taxable Group company; or

« different company entities which intend either to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are expected to be settled or recovered.

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity oniy to the extent that they do not meet the definition of
a financial liability. The Group's ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.

Reyenue

Revenue represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade
discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes.

Supply of products

Revenue from the supply of products is recognised, at a point in time, when the Group has transferred control to the
buyer. These criteria are normally considered to be met when the goods are deliverad to the buyer, or on fulfilment of a
prescription. Revenue is recognised at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Revenue from the supply of products in relation to charged for Managed Access Programs is recognised based on
Clinigen being the principal in the transaction given the Group takes title and bears the inventory risk. The revenue and
cost of sales on these arrangements are typically the same value and is therefore referred to as ‘pass through revenue’.
Net revenue defined as revenue excluding the pass through from Managed Access is an Alternative Performance
Measure used by the Group as it allows management to assess the performance of the business after removing the
distortion of pass through revenue which varies depending on the mix of ‘charged for’ and ‘free of charge’ programs in
the period.

Service fees

All services provided in relation to Managed Access Programs and product development contracts are contractually
agreed with the product originator. Revenue for these services is recognised in the period in which the services are
pravided. For fixed-price centracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be pravided, because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously. Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are reviewed if
circumstances change. Any resulting increase or decrease in estimated revenues or costs is reflected in praofit or loss in
the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the review become known to management.

Contracted program setup fees can be either for the whole project or triggered by milestones being achieved which are
iaid out in the contract. Revenue is recognised in relation to these fees over time as contracted milestones are achieved.

Monthly management fees are recognised as revenue over time as contractual services are provided.

Revenue in respect of program management fees is recognised, at a point in time, when goods, provided under the
program, have been dispatched to the customer for whom the management fee relates.

Royaities

Royalty income is earned on product distribution agreements based upon a percentage of sales made by the distribution
partner. As these sales-based royalties are on the licensing of the right to use the Group’s intellectual property, revenue
is only recognised at a paint in time once the relevant product sales occur.

Revenue in the period principally arises fram the three income streams discussed above. Further information is available
in note 4.
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The Group makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaltuated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and
assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

a Critical estimates

Assessment far goodwiil impairment

Goodwill impairment tests require the estimation of future cash flows to calculate a value-in-use and estimates of fair
value less costs to sell for each group of CGUs. Future cash flow estimates are based on budgets and forecasts along
with estimates of long term growth rates with the resulting cash flows discounted at an appropriate discount rate. The
value of goodwill allocated to each group of CGUs, the long term growth rate assumptions and discount rates used are
detailed in note 11. Disclosure Is also provided of the discount rates and terminal growth rate required to eliminate
headroom in impairment assessment.

Fair value of contingent consideration recognised on disposal of Proleukin

The disposal of Proleukin in May 2023 includes cantingent consideration in the form of payments into perpetuity based
on future sales of Proleukin. The estimated fair value of these future payments is dependent on the successful launch of
a tumor-infiltrating lymphocyte (TIL) therapy by lovance Biotheraputics Inc, for which Proleukin is used as an adjunctive.
The future sales of Proleukin have been estimated by management's third party expert which includes judgments on the
level of adoption of TIL treatment by physicians within the cancer treatment regimen, whether it will be used as a second
or third line of treatment, level of competition from other cancer treatments, types of cancer it will be approved for, the
timing/ramp-up of sales in each area of treatment and the level of revenue gross to net adjustments for discounts and
rebates

Other input estimates into the fair value calculation for the contingent consideration asset include the discount rate and
the terminal long-term growth rate used to caiculate the net present value of the future cash flows. The fair value has
been calculated based on estimated sales over a forecast period of 15 years to 2038 with a terminal value based on a
long term growth rate at the end of that period. The cash flows have been risk adjusted using a probability of technical
and regulatory success (PTRS) as determined by the 3rd party experts.

A fair value of £162.2m has been recognised for the contingent consideration asset, which is management’'s best
estimate of the present value of cash flows that will arise. A reasonably likely range estimate for the fair value is between
£100m and £225m dependent on the outcome of the variables detailed above.

If the estimated discount rate applied to the discounted cash flows at 30 June 2023 of 8% is raised by 1% the carrying
amount of the contingent consideration asset would have been reduced by £14.7m. If the estimated long-term growth
rate applied to the terminal year (2038 -5%) of cash flows is reduced by 1% the carrying amount of the contingent
consideration asset would have been reduced by £2.1m. If each of the PTRS rates {range of 46% to 91%) were reduced
by 1% the carrying amount of the contingent consideration asset would have been reduced by £2 3m_ If the estimated
number of patients reduced by 1% the carrying amount of the contingent consideration asset would have been reduced
by £1.7m. If the gross to net revenue adjustment of 26% is increased by 1% the carrying amaunt of the contingent
consideration asset would have been reduced by £2.3m

These fair value calculations have been based on the assumption that lovance Biotheraputics Inc continues as a going
concern for the foreseeable future. Management have reviewed this assumption based on publicly available information
and note the funding risks associated with a biotechnology business launching its first product. However consider it an
appropriate basis for the recognition of the contingent consideration.

Business disputes

The business has a number of disputes arising from the normal course of trading where the outcome is uncertain. In
preparing the results management have determined their best estimate for what is the most likely outcome for each
outstanding position. In total across all disputes the potential upside outcome from a favourable resolution could be
£7.7m, being a £15m receivable recovery offset by a £7 3m payable currently recognised as a net nil position and a
potential downside outcome from an unfavourable resclution could be £11.7m being non recavery of a £4.4m inventory
balance and £7.3m liability payment

b. Gther Estimates

Sale of products wholesale

Before divestment of the product, Proleukin was sold to wholesalers with provisions to return product as a result of
expiry dates being reached and for reimbursement from Clinigen for sale of product at below Wholesaler Acquisition
Cost (‘WAC"), known as chargebacks, where agreements are in place with heaithcare providers. Revenue is recognised
net of an estimate of reimbursements expected. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the
reimbursements and revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. A liability {included in trade and other payables) is recognised for expected returns, rebates and chargebacks
payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting pericd.
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b. ludgements

Acquisition accouating

In the prior period, management made a number of judgements in relation to the acquisition of the Clinigen Group.
Judgement was required to identify all assets and liabilities where they are different to those recorded in the books of the
acquired group. For the purpose of annual impairment testing required by IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”, further
judgement was made in relation to the allocation of goodwill to each group of Cash Generating Units (*CGUSs"}, including
the basis of recording the goodwill by jurisdiction and currency.

Managed Access judgment of heing a prircipal

Managed Access Programs provide a service for clients to distribute unlicensed products before the product is licensed
in key markets. Clinigen charges the end customer for the product supplied at the price determined by the client which
results in a pass through of revenue. A judgment is taken by management that Clinigen is operating as principal in the
transaction based on the Group taking title to the product and bearing inventory risk. As a result, Clinigen recognises the
amounts charged to customers for this activity as revenue.

3. ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The Group's performance is assessed using a number of non-GAAP financial measures which are not defined under
IFRS. These measures are therefore considered aiternative performance measures.

Management uses the adjusted or alternative measures as part of their internal financial performance monitaring and
when assessing the future impact on operating decisions.

The measures allow mare effective year-on-year comparison and identification of core business trends by removing the
impact of items occurring either outside the normal course of operaticns or as a result of intermittent activities such as
business combinations and restructuring The principles to identify adjusting items have been applied to the current and
prior year comparative numbers on a consistent basis.

The measures used in the Annual Report are defined in the table below.

Alternative

performance Related IFRS

measure measure Definition Uselrelevance

Net revenue Revenue Revenue excluding the pass through revenue  The year-on-year growth in revenue can be

from Managed Access. impacted by a change in the mix of ‘charged for’

and ‘free of charge’ Managed Access Programs.
Net revenue allows management and users of the
financial statements to assess the performance of
the business after removing the pass through
revenue.

EBITDA Profit from Consolidated eamings before interest, tax, Provides management with an approximation of

tions depreciation and amortisation. cash generation from operational activities.

Adjusted Profit from Consolidated earnings before interest, tax, Provides management with an approximation of

EBITDA operations depreciation, amortisation and adjusting items: cash generation from operational activities after
Transaction costs, restructuring costs removing the distortion of largefunusuat tems or
adjustments to contingent consideration arising transactions that are not reflective of the undertying
from earnouts on acquisitions performance of the business.

exceptional impairments
Including share of associate EBITDA

Adjusted Profit before Profit before tax excluding adjusting items: Allows management {o assess the performance of

profit before  tax As detailed above for adjusted EBITDA the business after removing the distortion of
tax Amortisation of acquisition-related intangible largefunusual items or transactions that are not
assets, non-underlying finance costs reflective of the routine business operations.

Associate tax charge
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Alternative
performance  Related IFRS
measure measure Definition Use/relevance
Net debt Borrowings Net debt comprises the carrying value of all Provides management with the level of leverage in
bank loans, net of unamerhised loan issue the business and is used in the covenant
costs, drawn revolving credit facilities and calculations for the revolving credit facility.
related party loans and cash and cash
equivalents.
All amounts are clpsing balances as at the
relevant balance sheet date.
Adjusted Cash flow from Operating cash flow is net cash flow from Provides management with a view of the level of
Operating operating operating activities before non underlying EBiTDA converted into cash.
cash flow activities items, income taxes and interest.

Adjusted operating cash flow of £47.8m (2022 3 months: £48.5m) represented a 57% conversion on adjusted EBITDA

(2022 3 months: 167%).

A reconciliation of borrowings to net debt is given in note 19.

The table below provides a reconciliation of the adjusted measures to their related IFRS measure.

2023 2022* (Re-presented) (Note 28)
Non- Nen-
underlying underlying
(In £m) Underlying (note 8) Total Underlying  (note 8) Total
Net revenue 424.5 - 424.5 124.3 - 124.3
Pass thiough reverue s - s07 a1 S
Revenue 515.2 - 515.2 151.4 - 151.4
égélléf sales V 77(7336.75) o (6.79}7 . (343;4) ) (71765.4) o (1%.5) (1213)
Gross profit 178.7 (6.9} 171.8 48.0 (17.9) 301
Admiistrative expenses excluding amorsation. mpaimentand o1 0o oas  (190) (@12 (@02
depreciation
Adjusted EBITDA 84.2 (17.2) 67.0 29.0 (39.1) {10.1)
Amotisation and impaiment (1.8 @82 (80 @0 68 08
Drerpreciatiron . - - (-6.0) - - (B.Oi. (2.‘1l)‘-” v(21)
Profit / (loss) from operations 64.4 {63.4) 1.0 249 (44 9} (20.0y
Frinance costs “ - “(4'.L6) - - ('.-f,-Z) (54.8) (24.9) (85) (334)
Profit / (toss) before income tax 16.8 {70.6) (53.8) - (53.4) (53.4)
Inééme t.a"x‘ S . (25) o ‘1“4.6 - 1é.1 . (2.8) - 8.5 57
Loss from continuing operations 14.3 {56.0) (41.7) (2.8) (44.9) 47.7)

*2022 is 3 months of results, from the date that the Clinigen Group was acquired by a subsidiary of the Company.

33




Triley Midco Limited
Annual Report and Accounts 2023

4. REVENUE

All revenue arises from contracts with customers and is recognised at a point in time or over time in accordance with the
Group accounting policies.

Bustness hine analysis

2022 (Re-
presented)
{In £m) 2023 (Note 28)

Partnered 138.1 324

On-Demand 44.0 10.4

Managed Access 33.7

CTS 96.0 43.8
CsSM 74.0 14.8
Owned Products 47.8 17.5

Inter-segment eliminations (12.2) (1.2)

Total revenue from external customers 515.2 151.4

Geographical analysis

2022 (Re-
presented)
(In £mj) 2023 (Note 28)

UK 89.9 26.9
VELrlrorprew I V 201.5 59.4
v - ez ms
sonAfica 70 9

0

Australia 27

Rest of World 98.1 246

Total revenue from external customers 515.2 1514

5. EXPENSES

5.1kxpenses
Profit / {ioss) from operations is stated after the following:

2022 (Re-
presented)
{In £m) 2023 (Note 28)

Cost of inventaries recognised as an expense in cost of sales 273.4 105.1
Employee benefit expense (net of capitalised costs of £2.0m (2022: £0.4m)) 59.2 14.0
Ameortisation and depreciation 66.0 9.9

Foreign exchange loss 1.1 4.6
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b. EXPENSES (continued)

5.2 Auditors’ remuneration
During the period, the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Company’s
auditors and its associates:

{In £m) 2023 2022
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company and consolidated financiai statements 0.7 0.3
Transaction related advisory fees Y .
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audt of the Company's subsidiaries 0.3 01

4.1 0.4

6. STAFF COSTS AND NUMBERS

&.1Employes henefit expense - continging aperations

2022 (Re-
presented)
(tn £my 2023 (Note 28)

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Other pension costs 2.0 0.5

Gross expense 61.2 14.4
Capitalised labour {2.0) (0.4)
Net expense 59.2 14.0

6.2 Average numper of geople employed
The average monthly number of peopie employed by the Group (on an FTE basis) during the period amounted to:

2022 (Re-

presented)
Number 2023 (Note 28}
Directors 2 2
Staff 1,096 1,017
Continuing 1,098 1,019
Discontinued operations 56 71
Total 1,154 1,090

The Headceount disclosure as presented for the prior period is the average headcount for the period after the acquisition
of the Clinigen Group, on 4 April 2022. From incorporation to the acquisition date there were 2 directors anly.
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1. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(In £m) 2023 2022
Aggregate emoluments 0.4 —
Highest paid directar

(In £my 2023 2022
Aggregate emoluments 0.3 -

Two directers (2022 None), including the highest paid director, are members of the group’s defined contribution pension

scheme.

8. NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS

Non-underlying items have been reported separately in order to provide the reader of the financial statements with a
better understanding of the operating performance of the Group. These items include amortisation of intangible assets
arising on acquisitiors and acquired products, one-off casts including business and product acquisition costs,
restructuring costs, changes in deferred and contingent consideratian, impairments and unwind of discount on

contingent censideration. The associated tax impact is also reported as non-underlying.

2022 (Re-
presented)
{(In £m} 2023 (Note 28)
Cost of sales
a)Unwmd o%lfair value uplift on inventories from acquisition 6.1 17.9
by Restructuring stack pravision 0.8 :
6.9 17.9
Adﬁinisfrative expenses -
¢) Acquisition expenses 1.9 16.0
o) Restuciwing costs 89 02
) Ghange in the fair value of contingent consideration  ws on
f) Noﬁ;L-m-dev-rl-y.ting-ac;qLJis-,i-t-ioH n-allai;eld forelgnexchange hovements - - V 57
) Amorisation of ntangible fixed assets acquired {hrough business combinations and acquired products 38 58
h) Impairment of intangible fixed assets - 23 -
56.5 27.0
Finance costs
i} Early repayment fees/Re-financing costs 7.2 85
Taxation
j) Credit in respect of tax on non-underlying expenses {14.6) (8.5)
Total continuing non-underlying items 56.0 449
k) Discontinued non-underlying items (70.3) 9.7
Total non-underlying items (14.3) 546

a) The value of inventories acquired from business combinations was measured at fair value on acquisition in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3. As the unwind of this fair value adjustment on sale of the inventories is

one-off in nature it has been treated as a non-underlying item recognised through cost of sales.

b) Stock provision as a result of management decision to change strategy for Imukin.
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8. NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS (continued)

c)

d)

e)

k}

The Group incurred a number of one-off costs relating to acquisitions including legal fees, advisory fees and
insurances which are expensed rather than capitalise in accerdance with IFRS 3 and are treated as non-underlying.

Restructuring costs have been incurred during the period in respect of changes to senior management and strategic
alignment following acquisition by Triton, for onerous contract costs and one-off warehousing charges,

Due to an exceptional performance by the Aseptic Compounding business which was divested by Clinigen in a prior
year, a further £0.5m became receivable by the Group under the earn cut arrangement which has been recognised
as a non-underlying credit to administrative expenses in the period.

Foreign exchange as a result of currency swaps resulting from acquisition related transactions.

The amortisation of intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations (namely brand, trademarks and
ticences, customer relationships, and contracts) is included in non-underlying due to its significance and to provide
the reader with a consistent view of the underlying costs of the operating Group.

The impairment of trademarks and licenses includes a number of owned products.

Costs incurred in repayment of the £140m second lien term loan including early repayment fee and acceleration of
the related unamortised issue costs. In the period to June 2022 costs we incurred for re-financing the business an
the acquisition by Triton.

The tax credit in respect of non-underlying items reflects the tax benefit on the non-underlying costs incurred.

The non-underlying costs associated with the discontinued business include £6 8m (2022: £4.0m) unwind of fair
value of inventories, £23.1m (2022: £7.8m) amortisation charge on acquired intangibles and £4.3m impairment of
Cardioxane on transfer to Held for Sale, £7.7m tax credit (2022: £2.2m tax credit) and profit on disposal of £86.6m
net of costs on held for sales disposal group £1.2m.

9. FINANCE COSTS

(In £m) 2023 2022
Bank interest expense 56.4 11.2
Movement -in fair-value of inlerest rate swap - - {1-4_3) -
VBorrowr'ing co.st.s. 7 7 o o 7 34 o 01
Foreign excﬁé};éé charge on borrowings o 1.7 134
.Ur.1wind of discﬁum on lease liabilities - - o - 70‘9 02
Underlying finance costs 47.6 249
Elarly repay-ment fees and acceieration of amortisation of debt issue costs - o .”7.2 -
ﬁon-underlying foreign exchange movements : - - - 62 l
Acﬁuisilion éxpenses . 7 . 7 - 23
Total finance costs 54.8 334
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE / (CREDIT)

(In £m) 2023 2022

Current tax expense
(0.2)

UK corporation tax 0.3

Overseas tax at local prevailing rates 8.9

Adjustment in respect of prior years (1.4)

Total current tax expense 7.8 09
“C)“riginéti-on-énd re-:\;rersa-l of t-em-pc-néry diﬁereﬁces- o (213) o (87)
Adustmentinrespect of prioryears a3

Adjustments in respect of tax rates (5.0

Total deferred tax credit (22.1) (8.7)

Total income tax credit (14.3) {7.8)

Continuing operations (12.1) (5.7)

Discontinued operations {2.2) (2.1)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK applied to profit for the period as foliows:

{In £m) 2023 2022

(Loss) from continuing operations before income tax (53.8) (53.4)

Profit / (loss) from discontinuing operations before income tax 95.6 (11.4)

Profit / {loss} before income tax 41.8 (64.8)

Expected tax charge / (credit) based on corporation tax rate of 20.5% (FY22: 19.0%) 8.6 (12.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1.2 59
Income not taxable (1.9 -

(Profit) on disposal of subsidiary (21.8) -

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years 2.8 -

Effect of changes to tax rates (5.0}

De-recognition of previously recognised tax fosses 01

Higher rates of taxes on overseas earnings 0.8 {1.0)

Total income tax credit {14.3) (7.8)

Further information on deferred tax movements and balances is provided in note 21.

Amounts recognised directly in equity

The income tax credit directly to equity during the period is as follows:
{(In £m) 2023 2022

Current tax arising on movement in net investment hedge (0.1) {0.4)
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Prior year current tax arising on movement in net investrﬁént -he-d-ge (05) o -
I;rio-r-ye-a"r-d.e-ferrt-e;j-t:a.g-a-lrlis;iﬁ;lalal %sl;émenl in net investﬁen! Hedée B (0.5)7 o
Total tax arising on movement in net investment hedge (1.%) (0.4)
11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Acqured intangibles
Acquired Developed
trademarks trademarks
Customer and and Computer
{In £my Brand Contracts relationships  licences licences software Goodwill Total
Cost
Acquired through business combination 1195 1045 1785 5630 - 834 6161 1,8650
Exchange differences 18 ©n 55 21 08 sz a7
At 30 June 2022 121.3 103.8 184.0 578.1 1.2 87.5 6253 1,701.2
Acquired through business combination - - - - - 4.7 5.1
Otner additions | : : . e 74 102 . 183
Dispasal of businesses : : ey (0 - (e (722)
dther drispos.a.lsh - - - - -‘ (0.2)‘ (1.8).‘ - (20)
1;ra|;15fer io Held forr salé - - - (3!;,6) - B - o -- - h (356)
IVExcharnge diﬁererncrersw ”(‘4.4) (7.4) (2.;1'; (7.8)- (0.5) -(0.2)-‘ (55:9)‘ (469)
At 30 June 2023 116.9 96.4 181.7 178.5 6.6 95.7 5921 1,267.9
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
C.hz;r-g;e .for the periﬁd . 1‘.6 ‘ 1.5 ' 2.0 7 7 7.2 ) - 3.6 7 - 15.7
Exthange difierences N PR T
At 30 June 2022 1.6 13 2.0 7.4 - 3.6 - 15.9
Charge for the period 6.4 48 8.3 388 3.2 17.3 - 78.8
Impa.irment charge . .- » ' 7 -7 7 49 . 71.7 - - 7 - - 6.57
Disposél of buﬁinesses - - - (23.4) - B - - (-23,4)
Otﬁer disposarisr - - lllll - (0-.2) (18) - (20)
Transfer to heid for sale : : - o) L
ExtV:lr-nérrwgre Vdrifferencesr ' (ﬁ.3) (04) llllll iD!Z) (1 .2)- (0.1} - - (2.2)
At 30 June 2023 7.7 57 101 155 486 19.1 - 62.7
Net book value
At30 June 2023 w92 %07 1716 1630 20 768 5921 1,052
At 370; Juﬁe 2702727 . ” 1197 102.5 - 182.0 57-0,7 12 83 9 625.3 -1‘68-5.3

Brands

The Group has several global and regional brand names including the Clinigen, Idis, Link, Equity and CSM brands. Each
brand has been fair valued at the acquisition date by reference to the operating businesses acquired which utilise each
brand. The fair value is based on a Relief-from-Royalty-Method which calculates the value of the brand as equivalent to
the royalty savings accrued over time, as the brand is owned and rayalties are not required to be paid to a third party for
the branding. The useful fives range from 15 to 20 years.
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Contracts

Clinigen has exclusive distribution contracts and relationships with pharmaceutical companies to distribute products into
both licensed and unlicensed markets. These were fair valued at the acquisition date based on Multi-period Excess
Earnings Method. The useful life has been judged at 18 years.

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Custemer relationships

There are long-standing relationships with significant repeat business, these relationships have been fair valued at the
acquisition date using a discounted valuation of future cash flows. The customer relationships for each area of the
business are being amortised over different useful economic lives (see note 1}. The useful lives range from 10 to 25
years.

Trademarks and licences

Trademarks and licences include the rights to pharmaceutical products and related dossiers which are either acquired or
developed internally. This includes the Group’s owned products including, Foscavir and Melatonin as well as dossiers
and licences relating to products sold and distributed by the Group as part of its partnered portfolio. The assets were
valued using a Multi-period Excess Earnings Method. The useful lives range from 13 to 25 years.

Computer software

Clinigen has two main proprietary software platforms: Clinigen Direct and eCEMS. Both were developed internally and
have been fair valued at the date of acquisition using a replacement cost-based approach. The useful life has been
determined as 7 years.

boodwill

Goodwill is deemed to have an indefinite useful life. It is carried at cost and is reviewed annually for impairment. Where
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment is made. During the period, goodwill was tested
for impairment, with no impairment charge arising.

The Group allocates goodwill to groups of cash generating units (CGU's), {previously described as cash generating
units), which are deemed to be the lowest level at which goodwifl will be internally monitored in-line with the Group’s
business units. Goodwill has been allocated as laid cut in the table below.

(In £rmy 2023 2022
Partnered 210.8 227.0
OnDemand S w03 430
Managed Access 757 723
Owned Products 61 202

5921 625.3

The recoverable amount of each group of CGUs has been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections over a period of five years and a pre-tax discount rate as detailed below.

For each group of CGUs, a specific discount rate and long-term growth rate has been used and shown in the table
below. Cash flow forecasts have been based on gross profit growth assumptions which are based on approved budgets
for the upcoming year and strategic projections representing the best estimate of future performance utilising the
Group's current asset base. The average gross profit growth over the review period are also detailed below.

2023 2022
Discount Long Discount  Long
rate term Growth rate term Growth
growth rate growth rate
Partnered 14.4% 2.5% 16% 10%  2.0% 10%
On-Demand 141% 2.3% 20% 10% 2.0% 8%

Managed Access

CcTs

13.2% 2.3% 10%
12.3% 1.8% 11%
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CSM 10.4% 2.5% 17% 10% 2.0% "M%

Owned Products 120% 2.1% 5% 10% 2.0% 7%

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group has applied sensitivities to assess whether any reasonably possible changes in assumptions could cause an
impairment that would be material to these financial statements. The rates at which the headroom of the recoverable
amount over the carrying value would be eliminated are as detailed below.

2023 2022
Long Long
Discount term  Discount term
rate growth rate growth

Rate required to eliminate headroom in impairment assessment:

Panered s 11%  M7%  (13%)
OnDemand . 1a3%  20% 129% (38%)
Managed Access O 136%  16%  132%  (48%
cts | O 13a% (04%)  141%  (80%)
esMo - M0s%  23%  104%  12%
dwﬁed Plr‘l;t‘:ilucts“ V - - . .12.5°"A;ll- 15% 11.0% (3,2“/.;)“

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections of each group of CGU's had been 1% higher than
management estimates, the group would have had to recognise impairments against goodwill as follows:

Sensitised  Impairment
Discount rate required

Impairment required from sensitised discount rate

Partnered  sa% £162m
OnDemand . % gasm
Managed Access 1% eeTm
csv - C Ma% ge2sm
Owned Products o 130%  £102m

If the long term growth rate applied to the cash flow projections of each group of CGU's had been 0.5% lower than
management estimates, the group would have had to recognise impairments against goodwill as follows:

Sensitised
Long term  Impairment
growth rate required

Impairment required from sensitised long term growth rate

On-Demand 1.8% £0.7m
CSM 2.0% £13.8m
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

{In £m}

Land and

Leasehold

buildings improvements

Plant and
machinery

Fixtures,
fittings and
equipment

Total

Cost

Acquired through business combinations

Other additions

Exchange differences

54

0.2

0.1

01

0.3

6.6

01

08

0.8

03

7.2

20.0

1.2

0.7

At 30 June 2022
Reclassification
Disposal of businesses

Exchange differences

5.7

04

7.0

1.2

(0.3

18

0.9

(0.8)

(0.1)

02

21.9

5.4

(1.6

(18}

At 30 June 2023

9.7

0.2

23.9

Accumulated depreciation

01

a3

Q.7

1.1

Charge for the period -
Exchange differences - - - 0.1 0.1
At 30 June 2022 0.1 0.3 - 0.8 1.2

Charge for the period

Exchange differences

0.3

Cen

(0.1)

1.5

©2)

0.1

1.8

(0.1

e

3.7
(0.2)
(0.9)

At 30 June 2023

0.2

1.6

2.0

3.8

Net hook value

At 30 June 2023

At 30 June 2022

4.5

5.6
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13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Land and Plant and

{In £m) buldings  machinery Total
Cost
:A;:CIL-Ji.r-ed thro;l\c‘;h busi-ness”;c;mbin-aﬁons 18.2 ” 3.2 214
Exchange alﬁerencés B 0.5 ” 0.1 06
At 30 June 2022 18.7 3.3 22.0
Other additions 3.8
bisposal (;;llﬁﬁsines;z;; lllllllll (6:4) ) (6:1) (0.5)
Exchange differences 0y - Qg
At 30 June 2023 217 4.1 25.8
Accumulated depreciation
Charge for the period 08 02 10
Exchange difierences T YR
At 30 June 2022 0.8 0.3 1.1
Charge for the period 3.4 11 4.5
Disposat éf bQSinesses (02} . o - (02)
Iéxchange-dif-ferences (01) 7 {0.1) (0.'.73)"
At 30 June 2023 3.9 1.3 5.2
Net book value
At30 June 2023 78 28 208
At30 June 2022 178 30 208
14. INVENTORIES
(In £rmy 2023 2022
Raw materials and consumables 8.2 196
Work in prog}réss D1 - 0 9
l;ini-shed- -goc;d; an-d g-;o;nds;.l%tsr r.esale - 58.é ‘ 760‘[] .
66.5 80.5

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to £279.2m (of which, £5.8m
was in relation to discontinued operations) (2022 £108.6m (of which, £3.5m was in relation to discontinued

operations)), including £11.1m (2022: £ni!) write down of stock to net realisable value.

During the year cost of inventories of £12.7m (of which, £6.6m was in relation to discontinued operations) (2022: £21.9m
{of which, £4m was in relation to discontinued operations}) relating to the unwind of the fair value adjustment recognised

as part of business combination accounting in the prior year was recognised in non-underlying costs (see note 8 for

further detail).

During the year due to a change in strategy. a ane-off stock provision of £0.8m was recognised in relation to Imukin

inventories which are now considered obsolete based on revised future sales projections as well as a £1.1m onerous

provision for future committed supplies.
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

{ln £m} 2023 2022
Trade receivables 94.5 99.8
Less: provision for Impaifment of trade receivables s an
Trade receivables — net 92.7 98.7
prepayments a0 139
Accrued incor;.e ------- N 9.-3 - 110
IVT\’VeL;eivVatr)ierfrérVnrrelétecrirpany V 30 R

Other receivables 100 o8
Total trade and other receivables 119.0 133.4

The Group applies the simplified approach under IFRS 9 to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The expected loss rates are based on payment profiles and historic
credit losses. The historic loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information on macro-economic
factors to the extent they are relevant to the customers’ ability to settle. Due to the short-term nature of trade and other
receivables, the book value approximates to their fair value save for where specific provision for impairment has been

made.

The following table provides information on the movement in the provision for impairment in the period:

(In £m)

At 1 July 2022 / Incorporation 18 November 2021 11 -
Acquired in business combinations - o9
Released to the income statement @8 03
Charged to the incamne statement s os
Provision utlised for debts witien of s -
At 30 June 2023 / 30 June 2022 1.8 1.1

The ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables balances and provisions including loss allowances is as follows:

2023 2022

(In £m) Gross Provisions Gross Provisions
Not past due 67.1 0.2 573 0.1
Uptoamontns pastdue 476 04 319 03
swo6monthspastdue 68 07 57 02
More than & months past due 30 08 43 05

94.5 1.8 998 1.1
16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(In £m) 2023 2022
Cash at bank and in hand 98.5 110.5

Due to the short-term nature of cash at bank and short-term deposits,
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17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022

Non- Non-

{In £m) Current current Current current
Trade payables 521 - 84.9 -
Toxandsocalsecuity e
Other payables Y T T
Accruals and deferred income s - 7154 .
Acquisition-refaled contingent liabiftes e o os
114.6 - 164.6 0.8

The acquisition-related contingent liabilities include a contingent consideration liability of £0.9m (2022: £0.8m) and
£0.5m (2022: £nil) in relation to accrued employee benefits payable to senior managers of Drug Safety Navigator, Inc.,
which was agquired during the year, subject to their continued employment.

The contingent consideration liability of £0.9m (2022: £0.8m) represents a payment due in calendar year 2024 relating to
an acquisition made by Clinigen Limited in a prior year which has been assumed by the Group on acquisition. This
liabitity remains unchanged following a review of the estimate of the likely payment. The liability was discounted at a rate
of 10%. A 100bps change in the discount rate would change the fair value by £0.1m, and a 10% change in the expected
value of the EBITDA in the earn out peried would change the fair value by £0.5m.

Due to the short-term nature of current trade and other payables, the fair value approximates ta their book value.
Creditors are unsecured.

18. PROVISIONS

{(In £m) 2023 2022
At 1 July - -
At 30 June 6.6

The provisions recognised in the year are in relation to onerous contracts for the purchase of stock within the next 12
months.

£5.5m was recognised in relation to the disposal of Proleukin, with the Group left with an onerous contract for the
purchase of unusable stock. This is expected to be paid in the first half of the financial year to 30 June 2024, with no
significant uncertainties as to the timing or amount due. £1.1m ariges with management's decision to change strategy for
Imukin and is expected to be paid during the financial year to 30 June 2024. There is some uncertainty on the timing of
payments.

There is no possibility of any reimbursement for any amounts
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19. BORROWINGS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

At 30 June 2023 the Group's borrowing facility comprised €735m {2022: €735m) Euro denominated debt with access to
an undrawn £75m (2022: £75m) sterling revolving credit facility. The applicable interest rate on amounts drawn is 4.75%
ptus EURIBOR. From August 2022 a floating to fixed interest rate swap is in place over 75% of the debt principal. A
second lien term loan of £140m (2022: £140m) with an interest rate of 8.25% plus SONIA was repaid in full in May 2023.
No cavenant testing i1s required unless the RCF is drawn.

The book value of loans and borrowings at 30 June 2023 were as follows:

(In £my) 2023 2022
Bank borrowings 618.8 751.8
Loans with related partes | L 1
Lease guarantee provided to non-related party s o9
Leasé Iiéhilities - o - - B 217.1 o 21.3
Total borrowings and |lease liabilities 640.8 786.3

Matusity of horrowings and lease liabilities
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group’s borrowings and lease liabilities at the year-end was as follows:

2023 2022
Gross Unamortised Net Gross Unamortised Net
(In £my) borrowings issue costs borrowings borrowings issue costs borrowings
Within 1 year 4.5 - 4.5 16.9 - 16.9
In more than 1 year but less than 3 ) 39 41 ) 41
2 years
In more than 2 years but less 6.3 } 6.3 72 } 7.2
than 5 years
In more than b years 639.1 (13.0) 6286.1 778.8 (20.7} 758.1
653.8 (13.0) 640.8 807.0 {20.7} 786.3

Fair value of borrowings
The fair values of the Group's borrowings are the same as the carrying amount and are within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

Reconciliation of movements in net deht

Loan Receivable
from from Cash and
related Bank Financial Lease Unamortised Total related cash Net
{In £m) party borrowings guarantee liabilities issue costs borrowings partyequivalents debt

At 1 July 2022 12.3 772.5 0.9 21.3 (20.7) 786.3 - {110.5) 675.8
Cash flow before ) ) ) . . ) ) (151.8) (151.8)
borrowings

New borrowings - - - 4.2 - 4.2 - - 4.2
Repayments of

borrowings (15.3} (142.5) - (3.9) . (161.7) - 161.7 -
Disposal of borrowings - - - {0.3) - {0.3) - - (0.3)
Amortisation of issue

costs - - - - 7.7 7.7 - - 7.7
Reclassification 3.0 - - - - 3.0 {3.0) - -
Exchange differences - 1.8 - (0.2) - 1.6 - 21 3.7
At 30 June 2023 - 631.8 09 211 {13.0) 640.8 {3.0) {98.5} 539.3
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19. BORROWINGS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
Reconciliation of movements in net debt {continued)

Loan
from Cash and
related Bank Financial Lease Unamortised Total cash Net

{ln £m) party borrowings guarantee liabilities issue costs borrowings equivalents debt
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 391.8 09 21.4 (1.0) 4131 (92.3) 320.8
Cash flow before
borrowings ° - N - - - (431) {43.1}
Proceeds from
borrowings 11.9 750.0 - - (21.2) 740.7 - 7407
Repayments of
borrowings - (391.3) - (1.0) - {392.3) 259 (366.4)
Non-cash release of issue
cost on repaid facility ) ) ) ) 1o 1.0 B 1.0
Amortisation of facility
issue costs - - B - 0.5 0.5 - 0.5
Exchange differences 0.4 220 - 0.9 - 23.3 (1.0} 22.3
At 30 June 2022 123 7725 0.9 21.3 (20.7) 786.3 (110.5) ©75.8

Total borrowings represent liabilities arising from financing activities.

Leases

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, equipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of three to ten years but in the case of property, they often have extension options some of which would be
exercised. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
At 30 June 2023 the Group had right-of-use assets of £20.6m (2022: £20.9m) and lease liabilities of £21.1m (2022:
£21.3m).

There were no material short-term or low value leases nor cutstanding commitments for shart term or low value leases
at 30 June 2023. The total cash outflow in respect of lease habilities during the period including interest and capital
payments was £4 9m (2022: £1.2m).

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks:
s credit risk;
» foreign exchange risk
e liquidity risk; and
s interest rate risk

In common with all other businesses, the Group is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial instruments.

This note describes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used ‘
to measure them. Further guantitative information in respect of these risks is presented throughout these financial |
statements. |

Principal financial mstruments
The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument nsk arises. are as follows:

* trade and other receivables;

e cash and cash equivalents;
trade and other payables;
loans and borrowings; and
derivative financial instruments.

The Group does not issue or use derivative financial instruments of a speculative nature.
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20, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

A summary of the financial instruments held by category is provided below:
{In £m} 2023 2022

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 98.5 110.5
Trade and other receivables 115.0 116.2

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Interest rate swap asset 14.8 -
Deferred consideration receivahle 205.7 1.2
Total financiat assets 434.0 227.9

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Trade and other payables 110.9 158 .4
Borrowings and lease liabilities 640.8 785.4
Derivatives used for hedging

Derivative financial instruments 0.2 0.2

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss

Deferred consideration 0.9 0.8
Total financial liabilities 752.8 944 8
Risk management

The Directors aim to reduce exposure to currency fluctuation using bank accounts denominated in the principal foreign
currencies for payments and receipts. The Group seeks to optimise the matching of currency surpluses generated to the
foreign currency needs of the wider Group, and wheve there is a sufficient visibility of currency needs. Hedging is in
place for foreign exchange to help mitigate volatility and aid margin management. The Group does not issue or use
financial instruments of a speculative nature and the Group's treasury function does not act as a profit centre.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss te the Group if a customer or a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations. The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk from credit sales to customers. It is Group palicy,
implemented locally, to assess the credit risk of new customers by obtaining credit ratings before entering contracts or
offering credit terms. The credit terms are then continually assessed on an individuaf basis, and amended accordingly,
as trading history is developed with the customer.

Quantitative disclosures of the credit risk exposure in relation to financial assets are set out below. Further disclosures
regarding trade and other receivables at the end of the financial period, are provided in note 15.

(In £m) 2023 2022

Financial assets = maximum exposure

Cash and cash equivalents o 7 98.5 -1 105
Trade and other recelvaples 150 1162
interest rate swap asset | 1438
Deferred consideration receivable 205.7 1.2
Total financial assets 434.0 227.9
Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises because the Group has operations located in various parts of the world whose functional
currency is not the same as the functional currency in which the Group companies are operating. The Group's cverseas
subsidiaries contribute approximately 47% (2022: 42%) to the Group's revenue, all of which is transacted in non-sterling
currencies. The overseas subsidiaries operate separate bank accounts, which are used solely for that subsidiary, thus
managing the currency in that country. The Group's net assets arising from such overseas operations are exposed to
currency risk resulting in gains or 1osses on retranslation into sterling.
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk alse arises when individual Group entities enter into transactions denominated in a currency other
than their functional currency. The Group hedges currency transactions internally through currency bank accounts and
by managing Group-wide currency requirements centrally. This reduces the currency risk exposure and allows
retranslation of these balances into sterling to be planned in order to minimise the exposure to foreign exchange rate
fluctuations. The Group uses forward contracts on large transactions where there is adequate visibility and the contract
is not naturally hedged. This reduces the risk to fluctuating foreign exchange rates and permits the management better
visibility and certainty of gross profit margins.

Forward exchange contracts are farmally designated as hedges and hedge accounting is applied to the extent that the
relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instrument allows it. Derivative financial instruments are carried
at fair value. The mark-to-market valuation at the reperting date has been recognised in the balance sheet as a financial
instrument asset or liability as appropriate.

At 30 June 2023 the Group had one (2022 one) material forward exchange contract in place. The notional principal
amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contract at 30 June 2023 was US$1.0m (2022: US$2.5m) with
maturity in July 2023. The foreign currency forward contract is denominated in the same currency as the highly probable
hedged transaction, therefore the hedge ratio is 1:1. The weighted average hedged rate for the period was US$1.19:£1
(2022: US$1.35:£1).

The vaiuation of financial instruments at the reporting date is impacted by the foreign exchange rate at that date,
primarily in respect of the US dollar and euro. At 30 June 2023, if sterling had weakened/strengthened by 10% (2022:
10%) against bath the US dollar and eura with alt variables held constant, profit for the period would have been £1.9m
(2022: £6.6m) higher/lower as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US dollar/euro trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade payables. The figure of 10% used for sensitivity analysis has been
chosen because it represents a range of reasenable fluctuations in exchange rates.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group’s management of working capital and the finance charges and principal repayments
on its debt instruments. It is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall
due.

The Group’s policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become
due.

The Beard receives cash flow projections based on working capital medelling, as well as informatien regarding cash
balances and net debt monthly. At the end of the financial period, these projections indicated that the Group expected to
have sufficient liquid resources to meet its obligations under all reasonably expected circumstances.

The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash flows) of financial
liabilities:

Between Between Between
Less than 3 months 1 and 2 2 and § More than
(In £m) 3 months and 1 year years years 5 years

At 30 June 2023

Trade and other payablés H 7 - 711.(.1.9 7 0.5 - 7 - 7 7 -
Léase Iiabi;ilt:es : 7 l - l . “ 1.1 » 3.4 a8 74 V . 8.7
Borréwi-ng-s | - l - | o . 11.7:;'; o 34.0 . 153.i h 673..7
At 3(!“June i022 H l . " o l S " R
Tréde Vand c;iher payéﬁlés 158 4 - -

Le;ase Ilabilil‘lés l " ' 1:2 ' 34  aa 8.4 .8,4
Borro;/vin-gs- i | . . 1.1.3 7 ‘;15:5 . 442 152.6 o 864.5
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Valuation hierarchy
The table below shows the financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method:

2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022

{In £m} Level1 LevelZ Level3 Level1 Level2 Level3
Assets/(liabilities)
Contingent consideration receivable - - 205.7 1.2
D;rivati;r;a l;'lna;\ﬁ-cia-l i-n-strLJment; - H
Interéét rate swap - 14.8 -

Forward foreign exchange contracts - . e - - ay -
Acqui;:-,ition- I;'-E|-Z;lt9d c-c;nt-ir-'l-gent p-a-yr-r;eﬁts- - - N - - (1.4} - - (08)

The Level 2 forward foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swap valuations are derived from mark-to-market
valuations as at 30 June 2023. Fair value gains of £14.8m (2022: £nil) relating to the movement in fair value of interest
swap derivatives have been recognised in underlying interest income. The level 3 contingent consideration receivable is
the discounted amount receivable in respect of the Proleukin milestone payment and perpetual sales-related
consideration payment as detailed in the key estimates disclosure within note 2. The level 3 acquisition-related
contingent liability is the discounted amount payable in respect of the iQone and DSN acquisitions. The amounts
payable have been calculated based on the latest forecast of earnings during the respective earn-out periods for iQone
and the passage of time and likely payment for DSN.

Capital management

The Group monitors ‘adjusted capital’ which comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share premium
acceunt, foreign exchange reserve, hedging reserve and accumulated losses) as disclosed in the statement of changes
in equity and long-term debt as detailed in note 19.

The Group's objectives when maintaining capital are:

« to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

* to ensure the Group has the cash available to develop the products and services provided by the Group in order to
provide an adequate return to shareholders.

Pricing, sale and acquisition decisions are made by assessing the level of risk in relation to the expected return.

The Group sets the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less related party loan receivable and cash and cash equivalents {(as detailed
in note 19).

interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on its €735m Euro denominated debt on which interest is payable based on
the Euro Interbank Offered Rate (EURIBOR’). During the year the Group entered into a three-year interest rate swap,
swapping floating interest to fixed interest payable on €551m principal, expiring Aug 2025, with a fixed average rate of
2.1%. The fair value of the interest rate swap derivative is an asset of £14.8m at 30 June 2023. Movements in the fair
value of the swap derivative are recognised within finance income or costs in the Income Statement.

21. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are analysed after offset, to the extent there is a legally enferceable right, of balances
within jurisdictions as follows:

(In £m) 2023 2022

Deferred tax assets 0.1 1.5

Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than 12 months (118.2) (198.8)

Deferred tax liabilities within 12 months (10.3) (11.1}

{128.5} (209.9)
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21. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement on the deferred income tax account is as shewn below:

Deferred asset ! liability prior
to any allowable jurisdictional

offsetting*
Balance . - . Balance
at1 R?ﬁoigg:)s;d Recognised Acquusmor; Disposal of e F?];er:gn at 30 Net
July ®  in equity . businesses , . C'a'9%  Jyne Deferred deferred
2022 statement usiness Adjustments 2023 Deferred tax tax
(In £m) tax assets liabilities liahilities
Intangible
assels {218.7) 13.0 - - 52.8 51 (147.8} - (147.8) (147.8)
Property,
plant and 0.9 (1.7} - - - - (0.8} - (0.8) {0.8)
equipment
Inventories 1.7 (1.0} - - - - 0.7 (U
Leases - 0.1 - - - - 01 0.1
R&D tax
credits 2.3) 1.3 - - - - (1.0 - {1.0) (1.0}
Losses 5.1 2.2 0.5 - - {0.3) 7.5 7.5 - 7.5
Provisions 3.4 (1.0) - - - (0.2) 2.2 2.2 - 2.2
Unremitted
eamings (0.9) {¢.1) - - - - (1.0) - {1.0} (1.0)
Corporate
interest 24 9.3 - - - - 147 11.7 - 11.7
restriction
{208.4) 221 0.5 - 52.8 4.6 (1284) 222 (150.6) (128.4)

*The deferred tax assets and liabilities disclosed earlier in the note are shown after allowabie jurisdictional offsetting.

Acquired in Recognised Foreign Balance at

business inincome  Exchange 30 June Deferred tax Deferred tax Net deferred

(In Emy) combinations  statement Adjustments 2022 assets liabilities tax fiabilities
Intangtble assets (216.8) 34 (5.3) (218.7) - (218.7) {218.7)
P}opert-y‘- plant and -equiprnent - 0.8 o - 01 N 09 07.977 — ” 7 09
wemories  @s  so o2 17 a9 @z 17
R&D tax credils 2.2) 0.2) ¥ 1 7 12;3) " V —- (23) V (2.‘3)
Losses R 45 o1 01 51 s - &1
us chla"rgebac:ks accerl - - 3 1 o 03 “ - 7 34 | 3:4 - — “ 34
Urllremittedrée‘;mings 7 ‘ 7 - " (0 9) —_ (09) ” - (0.9l)‘
Corporate in;;arest restric”tion ‘ 14 1.0 — - 24 - -2.4 — 24
Jurisdictiunalr offset - 7 - - 7 - o 4 5.l2) - 152 ( . - —
(212.3) 8.7 (4.8) {208.4) 1.5 (209.9) {208.4)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax

benefit through future taxable profits 1s probable. Deferred tax is calcul

ated in full on temporary differences under the

liability method using the enacted tax rate for the period when the temporary difference is expected to reverse.

The Group has not recognised a deferred income tax asset of £0.2m (2022: £0.2m) in respect of £1.3m (2022: £1.3m) of
losses within Clinigen Healthcare Switzerland on the basis these may not be utilised befare their expiry in 2024,
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21. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The group has suffered UK interest expense in excess of its interest capacity for the year. The excess interest expense
is carried forward indefinitely and is available to shelter future UK taxable income, subject to the interest limitation of
30% of taxable EBITDA. A deferred tax asset is recognised on the basis that the UK group of companies will generate
sufficient taxable profits against which this temporary difference will reverse.

At 30 June 2023 £0.9m (2022: £0.9m) of deferred tax liability was recognised in respect of unremitted earnings relating
te non-UK subsidiaries in Australia and South Africa where it is probable the Group will repatriate accumulated earnings.
No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of undistributed earnings of other non-UK subsidiaries
amounting to £3.8m (2022: £2.0m) because the group is in a position to control the timing of any dividends from these
subsidiaries and hence any tax conseguences that may arise, and it is probable that the repatriation of the accumulated
earnings of these foreign subsidiaries is not expected to take place in the foreseeable future.

22. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of
shares
Issued and fully paid (ordinary shares of £0.01 each) (m)

2023 2022

At 1 July / incorporation 9,110 -
Issue of new shares - 9,110
At 30 June 9,110 9,110
{in £m) 2023 2022
Ordinary shares of £0.01 each 91.1 91.1

The Company does not have a limited amount of authorised share capital. The ordinary shares entitle the holder to
participate in dividends as declared from time to time and to share in the proceeds of winding up the company in
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. Every holder is entitled to vote with each share
entitled to one vote. The shares are not redeemable.

23. RESERVES

The following describes the nature and purpose cof each reserve within equity:

Reserve Description and purpose

Share premium account Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value

Hedgngreseve  Gainsfosses arising on cash flow hedges.

Frorreigﬁrégcrzﬁalrﬁgrérre”sérvé 7 Gams/losses arirsinrgrorﬁ Vrertrénslartiné fﬁérnet Vassetsrsrof &érseés opératioﬁsr intorsrtrerrling.

Accumulated losses All other net gains and losses and transactions with owners (2.9. dividends) not recognised
elsewhere.

24, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2023, the Group had capital commitments of £3.0m (2022: £0.1m).

25, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of its employees. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. Pension costs represent the
contributions payable by the Group to the funds and amounted to £2.0m (2022: £0.5m) from continuing cperations.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Ultimate controliing party

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking is Triley Holdco Limited a company incorporated in Jersey. The Group's
ultimate parent undertaking is Triton Fund V which is managed and controlled by its general partners Triton Managers V
Limited, TFF V Limited and Triton Fund V GP S.a.r.l. The ultimate controlling party is considered to be the directors of
Triton Managers V Limited and TFF V Limited.
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Compensation of Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having autherity and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Group. This is considered to be the directors and members of the Group.'s Executive Management
Team. Key management compensation comprising wages, salaries and benefits was £2.2m (2022 3 months: £0.6m).

Transactions with related parties

Novagen Pharma Pty Limited {‘'Novagen’) is an associate in which the Group has a 45% interest. During the period the
Group charged distribution fees of £0.3m (2022: £0.1m) to Novagen, and recharged costs of £0.5m {2022: £0.1m) for
goods and services provided. At 30 June 2023, the Group had £0.2m (2022: £0.1m) receivable owing from Novagen.

Bridge financing of €17 .9m was provided to the Group by Triton Masterluxco 5 SARL, a parent company, ahead of the
acquisition of Clinigen Limited (previously known as Clinigen Group plc) and a payable was recognised by the Group.
This amount was fully repaid in September 2022

Aloan of £3.0m is cutstanding from Triton V LuxCo 76 SARL, a parent company which is due on demand.

AL 30 June 2023 an accrual of €4,561,000 (2022; €4,405,000) was in relation to acquisition and related costs from Triton
Investment Advisors LLP.

There were no other transactions with related parties during the peried.

Subsidiary Undertakings

The subsidiaries {direct and indirect) of Triley Midco Limited as at 30 June 2023 were as follows:

Country of
Name Natura of business incorporation

Cllnlgen Llrmted* Holding company UK*

Clmngen Holdlngs L|m|ted - - 7 Holdlngcompany UK1
Clmlgen Internatlonal Holdmés L|rn|ted o 'WHoIdlng company I UKl
Clinigen Healthcare Limited * o “mSuppr cf pharmacéﬁtmal producls and Semces‘”""”‘" UK‘ -
Co!onis F’harma Limited * Developmenl of pharmaceuhcal and related prOdL.l;tS----' UK1

Clm|gen Inc Supply of pharmaceunca! produds and services us?

Clmlgen Ireland lened o Manufacture and supply of pharmaceut!cal producls lrela;;‘m

Chnagen Branded Products lelted”:m - mSuppIy of pharmaceutlcal products UK‘
Clinlgen Heallhcare B.V. - o Holdlng COiTlpany T MTﬂnether!a“nds o
Chmgen Chn:cal Tr|a|s lelted" - WDormant T UK1 -

Clinigen Pharma Limited * Holdlng company UK?

C1‘migen GAP Lirn'ned Dorman LK

C“mgen CTS lelted SR - Dormam e <t e e e e i UK] © e o o
Keats Heauhcare leded S — Dormam e e s e < ot e et UK
s Gmup Limited ° T T pemam T T e
|d,5 lened - - y .D‘;rmam e i e e e e et i S < e U Kl R

Idls MA leited Dormant UK*

!dls GA Llrruted Dormant UK?

Idis Pharma Limited Dormant UK?
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Country of
Name Nature of business incorporation
Clinigen Asia Pte. Limited Halding company Singapore
Link Healthcare Singapore Pte. Limited Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical praducts Singapore
Link Healthcare KK Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products Japan
Clinigen KK Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products Japan
International Medical Management Corporation KK Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products Japan
Link Healthcare Sdn Bhd Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products Malaysia
Clinigen Korea, LLC Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products Korea
Link Healthcare Hong Kong Limited Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products Hong Kong
Link Medical Products (Pty) Limited Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products Australia
Link Pharmaceuticals Limited Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products New Zealand
Clinigen South Africa (Pty) Limited Holding company South Africa

Homemed Pty Limited

Supply and distribution of medical devices

South Africa

Equity Pharmaceuticals (Pty) Limited

Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products

South Africa

Equity Medical Technelogies (Pty) Limited

Supply and distribution of medical devices

South Africa

Equipharm Specialised Distribution (Pty) Limited

Distribution of medical products and devices

South Africa

Clinigen Kenya Limited Supply and distribution of pharmaceutica! products Kenya

Link Healihcare (Pty) Limited Holding company Australia

Link Halding 1 {Pty) Limited Holding company Australia

Link Holding 2 {Pty) Limited Holding company Australia

PMIP (Pty} Limited Deormant Australia

Plurilinx (Pty) Limited Dormant South Africa
South Africa

Chloromix (Pty) Limited

Holding company

Quantum Pharma Ho!ding; Limited - | Holding company UK?
Quantum Pharma 2014 Limited * Holding company UK?
B-J;nlum Pharma Group Limited * Holding company UK:?
Lamda Pharma Limitec'! *w Holding company | o UK:?
lamda (UG Limited*  Supply of pharmaceutical products e
auantum Specials Trustee Limited Dormant ” UK?
Cinigen Clinical Supplies Management Parent. Inc.  Holding company s
Clinigé“n Clinical Supplies Mana'gement‘ Inc. o ;;6vision of clinical pack;alging‘ labelling, warehousing, US’
and distribution services
UST D

Clinigen Clinical Supplies Management Holdings LLC Holding company
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Subsidiaries (continyed)

Mame

Nature of business

Country of
ingorporation

Clinigen Clinical Supplies Management SA Provision of clinical packaging. labelling, warehousing,

Clinigen Clinical Supplies Management GmbH Provision of clinical packaglng Iabelllng warehousmg.

and dlstrlbutlon sarvices

and dlstrlbutlon services

Clinigen Clinical Supplies Management Belgium SRL Holdlng company

Clinigen Biological Sample Management, Inc. Provision of clinical packaglng Iabelllng warehousmg

and distribution services

Clinigen Heailthcare Holding {Switzenand) SA Prowsmn of medlcal |nformat|on services

Clinigen Healthcare Switzerland Sarl
Clinigen Healthcare France SAS.
ClinigernrHealtchare Germrany fVBVrnUH N
(.Zlinigen”l‘-iealthca.re Italu‘érl h Provision of medical information services

Clinigen Healthcare Spain SL. © Provision of medical information services

Drug safety Navigator LLC Provision of pharmaceutical services

Provision of pharmaceutical services

Provision of medical information services

Provision of medical information services

Belgium

Germany

Belgium

us?

Switzerland

Switzerland

Frarice

Germany

Italy

Spain

us’

Triley Bidco Limited* Holding company

UK

Triley Midco 2 Limited* Holding company UK!

Country

Registered office

UK?

Uk

UK3.

ust

us?
Singapore
Japan :
Malays-.a |
Hong Koné
Korea
Austraha
New Zeafand
South Afnca
Nefhe.planos
Belgium
Frané:e -
Gernwany
haly

Spain

Schiphol Boulevard 359, 1118 BJ Amsterdam Schiphal

20 Avenue René Cassm 69009 Lyon

25 Bedford Square Bfoomsbury London WC1B 3HH

Bulman House Regent Centre Gosforth Newcastle Upon Tyne NE3 3LS

300 Technology Drlve Mai'vern Pennsylvanra 19355

Corporanon Servu:e Company 251 thtle Fal!s Dnve Wllmmgton Delaware 19808

Pltcalrn House Crown Square Cemrurn 100 Burton -on- Trent S!aﬁordshwe DE14 ZV\aW

9 Rafﬂes Place #27 00 Repubhc F’Iaza Slngapore 048619

1- 18 3 N|honbashl Chuo Ku Tokyo 103 0027

Room 1901 19/F Lee Garden One 33 Hysan Avenue Causeway Bay

#606 Daeryung!echno t0wn ‘rgth 70 Gasan dlgnal 2 -ro, Geumcheon-gu Seoul Korea 08589

5 Apollo Slreet Warnewood NSW 2102

Upper Pemhouse W\sma RKT No '2 Jalan Ra)a Abdu'.'.ah Off Jalan Suﬂan \smaﬂ 50300 Ku'.a '._umpur

RSM New Zealand RSM House Leve|2 62 nghbrook Dnve East Tamak| Auckland 2013

100 Sovermgn Drlve. Route 21 Corporate Park, Nellmapius Dnve Irene 0157‘ Pretoria

Rue Granbonpré 11. 1435 Mont-Saint-Guiben

Vlale Abruzm 94 20131 Mllan
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Country Registered office

Switzerland Medulis Business Park, Route de Suisse 162, 1290 Versoix

reland  Mayfield Business Park, Lismore. County Waterford
Greece 59, loannouMetaxastr. 19441 Karopi

I.(elﬁ;a . Sameer Business Park. Mombasa Road, PO Box 10032 - 00100 - G.P.O Nairabi

* The subsidiaries marked with an asterisk are companies which are incorporated in England and VWales, and are
exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section
479A of the Act.

All shareholdings in subsidiaries are owned 100% through the subsidiaries’ ordinary share capital.

Associates
MeasurementOwnership
Name Year end Country of incorporation and registered office method
Novagen Pharma 100 Sovereign Drive, Route 21 Corporate Park, Nellmapius Drive, Irene
Pty Limited 31 March 0157, Pretoria Equity 45%
Novagen BBBEE
Invest Co Pty 100 Sovereign Drive, Route 21 Corporate Park, Nellmapius Drive. Irene
Limited 31 March 0157, Pretoria Equity 24.5%
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21. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Current year acquisitions

On 25" November 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Drug Safety Navigator LLC for US$6m in cash,
to enhance the Clinigen Group's service offering.

The provisional fair value of assets acquired and fiabilities assumed on the acquisitions are as follows:

(in Em) Totat

Intangible assets:

Customer and other relationships 0.4

Intangible assets 0.4
Trade and other receivables T s
'Vrraderermd otﬁér payables V - - | (03)
Total identifiable net assets 0.5
Goodwill 4.7
Total 5.2
Satisfied by:

Cash (r:on.‘c,‘i‘.jerrati‘c;r; paid - “ 52

Other infarmation:

Revenue from date of acquisition

Loss before tax from date of acquisition -
Pro forma revenue for the reported period ended 30 June 2023 2.8

Pro forma loss before tax for the reported period ended 30 June 2023 -

The goodwill ansing in the period is deductible for tax purposes and represents the synergies, assembled workforces
and future growth potential of the acquired businesses.

At the date of acquisition, the gross contractual amounts receivable in respect of trade and other receivables of £0.6m
were partly provided for, £0.4m of this was expected t¢ be collected.

An earnout arrangement is in place for the sellers to earn up to US$1.5m based on the performance of the business in

the 12 months post-acquisition by the Group. It is expected that the target to trigger the payment will not be achieved
and therefare no payment is expected under the arrangement
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21, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Prior year acquisitions

On 4 April 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Clinigen Limited (previously known as Clinigen

Group plc), through a scheme of arrangement for total consideration of £1,257.6m settled entirely in cash which

represented a value of 925 pence for each Clinigen share.

The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the acquisition are as follows:

(tn £m) Total

Intangible assets:

Brand 7 119.6

Céntracts 7 1045
Customer and other relationships s
Trademarks and licences 830
Sofware Yy

Intangible assets 1,038.9

Property, plant and equipment 200
Rightofuse assets 21.4

Deferred tax asset 8.7

Inventorles 1180
Trade and other receivables  ta07
Cashand ;ashl equivaler.ﬂs 92.3

Trade and other payables  (160.6)

Barowings @
Lease labittes et

Coporationtax 37

Deferred tax liability (221.0)

Total identifiable net assets 641.5

Goodwill 616.1

Total 1,257.6

Satisfied by:

Cash consideration paid 12576

These fair values are determined by using established estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation models. Goodwill represents the synergies, assembled workforces and future growth potential of the acquired
businesses. The goadwill arising in the period is not deductible for tax purposes.
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26. DISPOSALS AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 31 March 2023, the Group completed the divestment of Lamda Laboratories S.A. {'Lamda’) to Adragos Pharma, and
subsequently on 18 May 2023, the Group completed the divestment of Clinigen SP Limited and the Proleukin business
{'Proleukin’) to lovance Bictherapeutics, inc.

Additionally, a further four of the Group’s owned products were sold in a separate transaction past year end to CNX
Therapeutics Limited, on 10 August 2023. in accordance with IFRS 5, the assets and liabilities of the businesses at 30
June 2023 are classified as held for sale

The results and cash flows of these businesses have been classified as discontinued. As a resuit of this classification,
the comparatives in the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows as well as the supporting
notes have been re-presented to separate the results for discontinued operations in accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 5.

Results for discontinuad operations

(In £m) 2023 2022
Underlying Non- TotalUnderlying Non-  rotal
underlying underlying
Revenue 455 - 45.5 52 - 52
Gross profit 391 (6.6) 325 17 (4.0) (2.3)
Administiative expenses @a® - @y wn - (2
EBITDA 34.8 {6.6) 28.2 0.5 {4.0) (3.5)
Amortisation. impairment and depreciation (@2 (74 @& - (8 79
Profit / (loss) before tax 34.6 (34.0) 0.6 0.5 (11.9)  (11.4)
ncome taxexpense @n 711 w8  @©n 22 21
Profit / (loss) after tax 27.5 (26.3) 1.2 0.4 9.7) {9.3)
Profiton disposal of discontinued operations - s  s78 - - -
Costs on held for sale disposal group . a2 @2 - - -
Profit / {loss) for the year from discontinued operations 27.5 70.3 97.8 0.4 9.7) (9.3)
The amortisation and depreciation charge includes amortisation and impairment of acquired intangibles of £27.4m
(2022: £5.5m).
Cash flows for discontinued operations
{in £m) 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities 25.1 4.5
Cash ;‘Iows ﬁsed in invest;f{g acti\;'ities | " . . . | | | ) ;1l91.ﬂh (lU.G)
Casfwl ﬂéws used iﬁ ﬁnanc;ng éﬁﬁvities | - | . . - ”(‘07.1)—‘ o
Net cash flow from discontinued operations 216.0 3.9
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28. DISPOSALS AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

Prafit on disposal
The Group recognised a total profit on disposal of £97.8m which is analysed as follows:

{ln Em) Proleukin  Lamda Total

Net assets disposed of (book value at date of disposal):
Goodwill 13.1 0.9 14.0

Other intangible assets 333.8 1.0 334.8

Properiy, plant and equipment - 1.4 1.4

Right-of-use assets - 0.3 0.3
Trade and other receivables . 24 24
Cashand cash equivalemts . g3  os
Tradeand other payables @3 @) @24
Cooration tax abilties @3 (@2
béférréd ta)-(‘ i-i%i.bllities B - - ) . o o (52.8]- o .(52..5)
Lease iabilties L ey el
Net assets disposed of 293.8 5.2 299.0

Consideration received:

Cash proceeds o qees 260 1929
Contingent consideration - milestone payment a1 . 47
Contingent consideration — perpetual sales-based payment 1622 . 1622
Total net consideration 370.8 26.0 396.8
Profit on disposal before disposal costs and accounting adjustments 77.0 20.8 97.8
Transaction costs (6.0) (1.5) {7.5)
Liabilty retained by the growg” _@n - @
Cumulative current translation reserve refease to income statementondisposal 154 02 158
Profit on disposal before taxation 76.7 19.5 96.2
Tacexpense 43 @y 16

Profit on disposal 78.6 19.2 97.8

*The liability retained by the Group is made up from a £5.5m onerous supply contract resulting from the disposal, partly
offset by the part release of an accrual for the supply of Proleukin to clinical trials.

Proleukin inventory with a net book value of £4 6m has also been fully provided for, as well as the unwound element of
FV uplift on inventory from acquisition (£0.4m).

Discontinued profit before tax is £95.6m: £85.0m (2022: nil) profit on disposal plus £0.6m profit (2022: loss of £11.4m)
from operations. Discontinued tax is a credit of £2.2m: £1.6m tax credit on disposal plus £0.6m tax credit (2022: £2.1m
tax credit) on operations. Profit after tax for discontinued operations is £97.8m: £96.6m on disposals and £1.2m profit

(2022: £9.3m loss) from operations.
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28 HELD FOR SALE ASSETS

The Clinigen Group entered into an agreement to divest of four Trademarks and licenses and the associated business
with negotiations ongoing over the 30 June 2023 year end.

{In £m) 2023 2022

Assets Classified as held for sale:

Trademarks and licences 24.6 -

246 -

The assets held for sale are four of the Clinigen Group's long held established brand pharmaceuticals reported in the
products division.

At year end there was an active sales process with the completion of the sale transaction on 10 August 2023.

An impairment of £4.3m was taken to bring the held for sales assat value equal to the fair value less future costs to sell
the business.

30. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Clinigenr Group divested of four trademarks and ficenses and the associated business 1o CNX Therapeutics Limited,
on 10 August 2023 for cash consideration of £23.0m. Subject to the future performance of the business, there is
performance related contingent consideration receivable up to an additional £3m.

On 31 October 2023 €50m of the Term Loan B was repaid.
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET as at 30 tune 2023

{In £m) Note 2023 2022
Assets

Non-current assets

Investments 3 911.0 911.0
Total non-current assets 911.0 911.0
Total assets 911.0 911.0
Net assets 811.0 911.0
l(l:apitai an-c-l -r-eserves

Called up share capital 4 911 o1
Share premium account a1 s19
Total equity 911.0 911.0

The company had no income or expenditure for the current year or prior period.

The financial statements on pages 62 to 64 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 February 2024 and were

signed on its behalf by:

RJ PALING
Director

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY to: the year to 30 June 2023

Called up
share Share
capital premium Total
(tn £my) {note 4} account equity
Issue of shares in the period to 30 June 2022 91.1 819.9 911.0
Total transactions with owners of the Company, recognised directly in equity 91.1 819.9 911.0
At 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023 91.1 819.9 911.0
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS tor the year to 30 June 2023
1. SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements present information about Triley Midco Limited (the Company') as a separate entity and not
about its Group. The accounting policies, set out in the consalidated financial statements, unless otherwise stated have
been applied consistently to the period presented in these Company financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The Company financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis under the historical cost convention
and in accordance with FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” and the Companies Act 2006, In preparing these
financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements
are presented in sterling and all vahies are rounded to the nearest £100,000 except when otherwise stated.

Fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its associates for audit and non-audit services to the Company itself are
not disclosed in the individual financial statements of Triley Midee Limited because the Group financial statements are
required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis (see note 5.2 of the consolidated financial statements).

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are recorded at historical cost, less any provision for impairment.

Exemptions

The Company has elected to apply the exemption in Section 408 of the Companies Act and has not presented its
separate statement of comprehensive income and related notes. It has also taken advantage of the exemptions under
FRS 101 not to disclose related party transactions entered into between two ar more members of the Group and not to
prepare a cash flow statement.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Functional currency of company

The functional currency of the Company was a judgement by management, wha, an balance determined that the functional
currency is Pound Sterling, on the basis that the primary economic environment of the Company is the UK and the purpose
of the Company is as an intermediate holding company for the Clinigen Group.

2. STAFF COSTS AND DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Campany had no employees (2022: nil) during the period and accordingly no employee costs (2022: £nil) are
included in these financial statements. Directors’ remuneration is borne by Clinigen Limited, a subsidiary company.

3. INVESTMENTS

(In £m) 2023 2022
Cost

Addlt Ions S e+ <+ e e i o < <+ @+ < s _ e 911 .
At 30 June 2023 / 30 June 2022 911.0 g11.0

In the period ended 30 June 2022, the Company acguired 100% of the issued share capital of Triley Midco 2 Limited, an
intermediate holding company, incorporated in the UK for consideration of £910,989,111 settled entirely in cash

A full list of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings and their registered addresses is presented in note 26 of the
consolidated financial statements.
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4. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares

Issued and fully paid (ordinary shares of £0.01 each) (m}

Issue of new shares in the period to 30 June 2022 9,110
At 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023 9,110
(In £m) 2023 2022
Ordinary shares of £0.01 each 91.1 91.1

The balance classified as equity share capital includes the total net proceeds (nominal value) on issue of the Company's
equity share capital. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time ta time and
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. The shares are not redeemable.

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company is disclosed in note 2. There were no other transactions with
related parties, other than the Company’s subsidiaries.

The Company's subsidiaries and associates are listed in the related parties note of the consoclidated financial statements
(note 26).

6. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2023. the Company had no capital commitments (2022: £nil).

7. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The Company's immediate parent undertaking is Triley Holdco Limited, a company incorporated in Jersey. The ultimate
parent undertaking is Triton Fund V which is managed and controlled by its general partners Triton Managers V Limited,
TFF V Limited and Triton Fund ¥V GP S.a.rl. The ultimate controlling party is considered to be the directors of Triton
Managers V Limited and TFF V Limited.

Triley Midco Limited, a company incorporated and registered in the United Kingdom, is the parent of the largest group of

undertakings to consolidate these financial statements. The consolidated accounts of Triley Midco Limited will be lodged
at UK Companies House,
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